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EREHE

LING Siu Man, Simon
EDX

Chairman and Managing Director

TEREFAREIE

Dear Shareholders

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am
pleased to present the annual results of Tonic Industries
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 March 2009 (the “Year").

The Group recorded a turnover from continuing
operations of HK$2,056 million, EBITDA of (HK$74)
million and loss attributable to shareholders of HK$175
million for the year ended 31 March 2009, compared to
HK$2,121 million, HK$142 million and profit of HK$6
million respectively for the previous year.

In the second half of 2008, hit by the global economic
downturn, the most severe in a century, many mature
economies in the world were sent into recession.
However, despite the extremely volatile and damaging
business environment, with vigour and determination, the
Group was able to guard its financial soundness. Applying
their proven ability to innovate, the management and
staff of the Group continued to respond well to the
changing needs of customers. The Group had two factors
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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working in its favour. The change of broadcasting system
from analogue to digital in global markets and the PRC
government implementing policies including offering
subsidies to promote sales of household appliances in
rural areas (RE N4 R) had given major impetus to
sales of set top boxes as well as other electronic products
of the Group.

However, despite the commendable sales performance
of the set top boxes business, having to face a market in
unprecedented turbulence, the Group inevitably incurred
an overall loss in the year under review. The factors
and events that posed heavy burden and harm on the
performance of the Group are briefly summarised below:—

Firstly, cost of production for the Year climbed because
of persistently high oil price. The new labour law
implemented in Mainland China also pushed up staff
cost. The appreciation of Renminbi as well as the high
material cost imposed an additional financial burden to
the Group’s production cost. Further, banks tightened
credit policy which led to increased financial cost. All
these distressing factors had not been fully compensated
by the thin margin offered by our customers.

Secondly, the Group had to pay compensation to layoff
workers and write off plant and inventories during
the Year for closing the home appliances division and
temporary suspension of the sub-assembly factory. The
loss from that was HK$22 million for the Year. The Group
decided to suspend the division because of the loss of
export market and increase in raw material price, especially
metal and plastic. In addition, appreciation of the Euro
during the Year also served as a factor which rendered
the high price of raw material. It was the atmosphere of
the financial crisis compelled many factories producing
raw materials to suspend, and this as a result drove the
price of raw material fastening in increasing upward.

Lastly, the Group decided to temporarily suspend some
of the divisions in a sub-assembly factory in PRC during
the Year. Certain of its fixed assets and inventories,
amounting to HK$42 million were written off.
Furthermore, provision was also made on certain debtors
and other receivables, amounting to HK$10 million
and HK$6 million respectively, which are considered as
uncollectible.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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In the coming year, the Group will continue to be prudent
and active in improving its financial performance. It will
do its very best in identifying suitable and profitable
business opportunities to expand its earning base. To
cement our market share, we will strive to boost sales of
our cutting edge set top boxes and continue to leverage
the promotion of purchase of household appliance effort
(RE T4 5) of the PRC Government. The latter in
particular is expected to see our business back on the
recovery path and translate into substantial profits for the
Group in coming years.

Barring unforeseeable circumstances, the Group
expects raw material prices and labour cost to stabilise.
Nevertheless, it will continue to implement strict cost
saving measures to ensure its business enjoys the highest
cost-effectiveness.

Final Dividend
The Board does not recommend payment of a final cash
dividend (year ended 31 March 2008: Nil).

Closure of Register of Members

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed
from 16 September 2009 to 18 September 2009, both
days inclusive, during which no transfer of shares will
be effected. To qualify for attending and voting at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to
be held on 18 September 2009, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s Share Registrar in Hong
Kong. Tricor Tengis Limited at 26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on 15 September 2009.
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Appreciation ESE |

On behalf of the Group, | would like to thank all AR EREE T LR EE THEE
employees for their continuous contribution and hard RFHHTIE - AANEEFE REKBHEHAR
work. My thanks also go to our customers and business SB—EHHETIH - URHEZSKERT
partners for their continuous support to the Group and AR M IFENE LFERHE -

my fellow Board members for their support and advice

during the year.

On behalf of the Board RREEZD

Ling Siu Man, Simon FEREFRITE

Chairman and Managing Director B

Hong Kong, 24 July 2009 B ZETENFLAZ+TA
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
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Executive Directors

Mr. LING Siu Man, Simon, aged 59, is the Chairman
and Managing Director of the Company. Mr. Ling
founded the business of the Group in 1976 and has over
32 years experience in the electronics industry. Mr. Ling
is responsible for the strategic planning, corporate policy,
and marketing aspects of the Group.

Mr. WONG Ki Cheung, aged 59, joined the Group
in 1976 and is responsible for the Group’s overall
management, purchasing and materials control functions.
He has over 32 years experience in the electronics
component industry.

Ms. LI Fung Ching, Catherine, aged 55, joined the
Group in 1976 and is responsible for the treasury function
of the Group. She has over 32 years experience in the
electronics industry.

Mr. LAM Kwai Wah, aged 44, joined the Group in 1998
and is mainly responsible for the Group’s marketing
activities. He has over 23 years experience in marketing
of electronics products. Mr. Lam obtained a higher
certificate in marketing and sales management from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. PANG Hon Chung, aged 58, holds a master’s
degree in business administration, and is a member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Pang
has extensive experience in business management and is
a director and the general manager of Lotus International
Limited.

Before 16 October 2007, he has been a director of
Chaoyue Group, previously known as Graneagle Holdings
Ltd, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.
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Mr. CHENG Tsang Wai, aged 53, has over 31 years
experience in the garment industry and is a director and
major shareholder of Vicka Limited which is a sweater
manufacturing company.

Dr. CHUNG Hing Wah, Paul, aged 63, has over 38
years' experiences with public service in administration,
operation, discipline, nursing and management. He
also has over 18 years’ experiences in training and
development and management consultancy with various
local and PRC Mainland providers and corporations.
Apart from being appointed as the consultant or
principal consultant of many major local and PRC training
providers, he is also the director and principal consultant
of PC Consultancy Ltd. Dr. Chung holds degrees of MBA
and DBA.

Senior Management

Mr. YEUNG Hon Po, aged 61, is the production
director of Dongguan Xin Lian Digital Technology Co.,
Ltd. Mr. Yeung is responsible for the management and
manufacturing operations of the Company in Dongguan
Shi Pai factory. He has over 41 years experience in the
production of electronic products and he joined the
Group in 1978.

Mr. KWOK Yiu Wa, aged 44, is the production manager
of Tonic Electronics Limited. He is mainly responsible
for the management and manufacturing operations of
the Company in Dongguan Tang Xia factory. He is also
responsible for the automation department in the factory.
Mr. Kwok has over 21 years of manufacturing experience
of electronic products and he joined the Group in 1988.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE DT

Business Development

The Group will focus on domestic market and continue
to develop high-end set top boxes. It will also develop
its own brand electric products and sell them to rural
households.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

On 23 March 2006, the Group signed a 3-year term loan
facility agreement for HK$150 million with a syndicate
of 7 international and local banks. The loan is on HIBOR
basis and repayable by installment starting 18 months
after the date of the loan agreement. The Group has
repaid the loan on 23 March 2009.

As at 31 March 2009, the net asset value of the Group
attributable to equity holders amounted to approximately
HK$387 million (31 March 2008: approximately
HK$562 million), including cash and bank balances
of approximately HK$37 million (31 March 2008:
approximately HK$31 million) which were denominated
mainly in Hong Kong dollars.

The trade receivable balance as at 31 March 2009
was approximately HK$122 million (31 March 2008:
approximately HK$326 million), including factored
accounts receivables of HK$53 million (31 March 2008:
approximately HK$118 million). Except the factored
accounts receivables with credit insurance cover, all other
trade receivables were on letter of credit.

As at 31 March 2009, the Group's aggregate borrowings
was approximately HK$399 million (31 March 2008:
approximately HK$518 million), of which approximately
HK$392 million was bank borrowings and approximately
HK$7 million was for obligations under finance leases.
The Group’s borrowings are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and bear interest mainly on HIBOR basis.
The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated based on net
borrowings over shareholder funds, was 94% (31 March
2008: 87%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Group is not exposed to any material currency
fluctuation risks, as most of its receivables as well as
payables are in US dollars. The Group has natural hedges
against currency risks and adheres to the policy of not
engaging in speculative activities. In addition, the Group's
Renminbi receipts from domestic sales could offset
Renminbi expenses of factories in the PRC.

Litigation

On 11 November 2008, Thomson Hong Kong Holdings
Limited (“Plaintiff”), a former customer of the Group,
issued writ of summons in the High Court of Hong Kong
against the Company and two of its indirect wholly
owned subsidiaries namely, Tonic Digital Products
Limited (“Tonic Digital”) and Tonic Electronics Limited
("Defendants”) claiming damages in the sum of
US$4,289,664.15 (approximately HK$33,244,897.16)
together with interest, and costs. The Defendants filed
their Defence and Counterclaim and the Plaintiff filed
its Reply and Defence to Counterclaim 17 March 20009.
The claims of the Plaintiff relate, inter alia, to refund of
the purchase price of goods sold and delivered by Tonic
Digital to the Plaintiff. Based on the case pleaded by
the Plaintiff and the information now available to the
Defendants, the Defendants have a defence with merits
to such claim. The parties attempt to resolve interlocutory
matters before the case is to be fixed for trial.

Employee Relations

As at 31 March 2009, the Group had approximately 3,700
employees in Hong Kong and the PRC. Salaries and wages
for the year ended 31 March 2009 totalled approximately
HK$163 million. Employees’ remuneration packages are
generally structured by reference to market conditions,
individual qualifications and performance. In addition to
basic salary payment, other benefits offered to employees
include contributions to mandatory provident fund, group
medical insurance and group personal accident insurance.
Employees may also to be granted share options at the
discretion of the Board under the Company’s share option
scheme.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ESEHRE

The directors present their report and the audited
financial statements of the Company and of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2009.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The subsidiaries are engaged in the design,
manufacture and trading of consumer electronic products
and components and home appliance products. There
were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year. During the year, the
board of directors decided to discontinue the Group's
home appliance products division.

Details of the principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 19 to the financial
statements.

Results and Dividends

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 March 2009 and
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at
that date are set out in the financial statements on pages
37 to 144.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend in respect of the year.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company
and of the Group during the year are set out in note
35(b) to the financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ESTHRE

Distributable Reserves

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s reserves
available for distribution represent the share premium
account, contributed surplus and retained profits. At 31
March 2009, the Company’s reserves available for cash
distribution and/or distribution in specie amounted to
HK$163,828,000, including the share premium account,
in the amount of HK$71,388,000.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the five largest customers in aggregate
accounted for approximately 73% of the total revenue
of the Group and the largest customer accounted for
approximately 40% of the total revenue of the Group.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for less than 30% of the total purchases for
the year.

As far as the directors are aware, neither the directors,
their associates (as defined in the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "Listing Rules"”)), nor any shareholders which,
to the knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital, had any interest in
the five largest customers or suppliers.

Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted
from the audited financial statements and restated/
reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 145. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in
note 15 to the financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ESEHRE

Share Capital and Share Options

Details of movements during the year in the Company’s
share capital and the share options are respectively set
out in notes 33 and 34 to the financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s articles of association or the laws of the
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Ling Siu Man, Simon (Chairman and Managing Director)
Wong Ki Cheung

Li Fung Ching, Catherine

Lam Kwai Wah

Au Wai Man (resigned on 1 January 2009)

Independent non-executive directors:
Pang Hon Chung

Cheng Tsang Wai

Chung Hing Wah, Paul

In accordance with article 116 of the Company’s articles
of association, Ms. Li Fung Ching, Catherine, Mr. Lam
Kwai Wah and Dr. Chung Hing Wah, Paul will retire and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The terms of office of the non-executive directors are
the periods from their dates of appointment to their
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s
articles of association.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Mr. Pang Hon Chung, Mr. Cheng
Tsang Wai and Dr. Chung Hing Wah, Paul, and still
considers them to be independent as at the date of this
report.
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ESTHRE

Directors’ Biographies
Biographical details of the directors of the Group are set
out on pages 8 to 9 of the annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts
All the executive directors have entered into service
contracts with the Company for terms of three years
commencing from 1 October 2006.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Directors’ Remuneration

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined
by the Company’s board of directors with reference to
the directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and
the results of the Group.
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ESEHRE

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares

At 31 March 2009, the interests of the directors in
the share capital of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the

ESHER 2R R EER DR KX
-}

R-ZZEZNF=ZA=+—H0 EFRAEALQH
REARBOEE (&R FF B RGI([FFH
KEERD)]) BXVER) 2 AT - A AaDEx

AR RIRIEEH R E G HI 3528 R ETF
BELM KRB EMBITAESETE
(R HMRETA([ZESFA]) BREERR
RAIRBEBBMAERSMBRAR (B2
BRI

Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers ( the “Model Code”), were as
follows:

(a) Long positions in ordinary shares of the (a) RKDBEBRZFE
Company

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s

ordinary issued share

Nature of interest shares held capital

i BEAREBT

Name of director BN ERtE ZEREE [N

Ling Siu Man, Simon & DX Corporate (note) 668,492,476 63.19

NG orz )

Li Fung Ching, Catherine ESEN=] Personal 2,142,000 0.20
fEA

Wong Ki Cheung HHE Personal 1,749,000 0.17
EA

Cheng Tsang Wai gio(z Personal 1,626,000 0.15
fEA

674,009,476 63.71

Mt - ZERMHB-HREBELHEFMKLZ
AFISuccess Forever Limitedi#5 ° s A EIHY
EREBITRARELCEERES ©

Note: These shares were held by Success Forever Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, the entire
issued share capital of which is beneficially owned by Mr.
Ling Siu Man, Simon.
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Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares (continued)
(b) Long positions in share options of the Company

BEEEE 2R REBRMDER KA
B (#)

(b) AAFBEREZHFR

Number of options directly
beneficially owned

Name of director EEHE BEEERBEENEREZE
Ling Siu Man, Simon & 15,000,000
Wong Ki Cheung HHE 2,715,000
Li Fung Ching, Catherine FE s 2,715,000
Lam Kwai Wah N EES 1,650,000

22,080,000

(c) Associated corporation
At 31 March 2009, Ling Siu Man, Simon personally
held 3,000 non-voting deferred shares of HK$100
each of Tonic Electronics Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2009, none of
the directors had registered an interest or short position
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Apart from as disclosed under the heading “Directors’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares” above and in the section “Share Option Scheme”
below, at no time during the year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company granted to any directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights
in any other body corporate.
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts of
Significance

Save as disclosed in note 43 to the financial statements,
no contract of significance to which the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party
in which any director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
any time during the year.

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group's operations. Further details of
the Scheme are disclosed in note 34 to the financial
statements.

18

ESRERGNP2ER

B mARMESREEIN  RERLFR
EAIER - ARF) - EIER A 7 e H
BARMEITETMNESRNETHEEERN
EEEARENEREL -

Bt &
AR ERA B B %1 8) - BEMZ
EHAKEEBERAEMERMNAERS2 A

ALTRFEEBNEE - et 2E—FFE
N KM 34 -

TONIC INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2009



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ESTHRE

Share Option Scheme (continued)

BReEstEl

The following table discloses movements in the TRIEBAQRIBIRENRFERNANES
Company's share options during the year:
Number of share options
BREZE
Closing
price of
share
At Lapsed At Exercise immediately
1 April during 31 March Date of Exercise price per  before date
2008 the year 2009 grant ® period share @ of grant
R=BENF R-BEAEF SR RERHAH
MA-B REAR%X® =A=+-A ReEBAHo T TEE®  FZUHE
HK$ HK$
B B
Directors
£
Ling Siu Man, Simon 15,000,000 - 15,000,000  07-04-2000  10-04-2000 0.467 0.870
EDPX “ZTTF 1009-04-2010
mMAtRE Z—ZTTF
mA+AZE
BB
mAAR
Wong Ki Cheung 2,715,000 - 2,715,000  07-04-2000  10-04-2000 0.467 0.870
"HES “ZTTF 1009-04-2010
mMAtHE Z—ZEEF
mA+AZE
—T-%F
mAAR
Li Fung Ching, Catherine 2,715,000 - 2,715,000  07-04-2000  10-04-2000 0.467 0.870
FB=E “TTTF 1009-04-2010
mMAtHE Z—ZETF
mA+AZE
—E-BF
mAAR
Lam Kwai Wah 1,650,000 - 1,650,000  07-04-2000  10-04-2000 0.467 0.870
MEE “ZTTF 10 09-04-2010
mMAtHE Z—ZETF
mA+AZE
BB
mAAR
Au Wai Man @ 2,715,000  (2,715,000) - 07-04-2000  10-04-2000 0.467 0.870
BERS —ETZTF 1009-04-2010
mA+H ZTTTH
mA+HEZE
—T-TF
mAAR
24,795,000  (2,715,000) 22,080,000

—ETNFFR ROIBEZRERLF
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Share Option Scheme (continued)

Number of share options

BReEstEl )

BREHE
Closing
price of
share
At Lapsed At Exercise immediately
1 April during 31 March Date of Exercise price per before date
2008 the year 2009 grant ® period share @ of grant
RZFBENE RZBENE SR RERLAH
mA-A REREX¥ =ZA=+-A RHEAHo T B FZWmHE
HK$ HK$
B B
Other employees
HitfE&
In aggregate 32,025,000  (6,975,000) 25,050,000  07-04-2000  10-04-2000 0.467 0.870
At ZTTTHF 1009-04-2010
MAtE —25%F
mA+AZE
—T-ZF
mANA
56,820,000  (9,690,000) 47,130,000
Notes. /Jﬁgf

(1) The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant
until the commencement of the exercise period.

(2)  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in
the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company'’s share capital.

3) resigned on 1 January 2009.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other
Persons’ Interests in Shares and Underlying

Shares

At 31 March 2009, the following interests of more than
5% of the issued share capital of the Company were
recorded in the register of interests kept by the Company

(1 BREZEBEHHARLBNEETEAFHER
1IF o

() BRREZITEER BEHEBSETAR  RARE
PR AN E M AR IR ED L S 2E -

) RIZETNF-A—BBE-

TERRREMALTRRO RBER

(R £

““;

TAF=_A=1—H  REARQ T?z:z

%&Hﬂiﬂlﬂﬁﬂ’5@3361I7:<Ffﬁ7(_§27féﬁ§1‘u
Fﬁuaﬁ" BARNRF D EITRAS%HIA L

pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO: HALTIT
Percentage of
Capacity Number of the Company’s
and nature ordinary issued share
Name of interest shares held capital
ERATE BT
=1 B RERME FrEgEREE e N=Yild
Success Forever Limited (note 1) Directly beneficially owned 668,492,476 63.19

(Hrit1) BERELRER

CorporActive Fund Limited (note 2)  Directly beneficially owned 60,778,000 5.75

(Biz2)
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other
Persons’ Interests in Shares and Underlying

Shares (Continued)
Notes:

(1) The entire issued share capital of Success Forever Limited is
beneficially owned by Mr. Ling Siu Man, Simon, as disclosed in
the section “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares” above.

(2)  CorporActive Fund Limited is an investment fund managed by
Somerley Asset Management Limited and the ultimate holding
company is Somerley Group Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2009, no person,
other than the directors of the Company, whose interests
are set out in the section “Directors’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” above, had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to
be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Connected Transactions
Details of the connected transactions of the Company are
set out in note 43 to the financial statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company'’s Listed Securities

During the Year, neither the Company, nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities.

Compliance With the Continuing Disclosure
Requirements Under Chapter 13 of the
Listing Rules

In compliance with the continuing disclosure requirements
under Rule 13.21 of Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules, the
directors of the Company reported the details of the
following loan agreement which included conditions
relating to the specific performance obligations of the
controlling shareholder of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Group
signed a term loan facility agreement for a syndicated
loan of HK$150 million for a period of three years.
Under the terms of the agreement, the chairman of
the Company, Mr. Ling Siu Man, Simon is required to
be the single largest shareholder, be actively involved
in the management and business of the Group, and be
maintained at least 40% of the beneficial interests in
shareholdings in the Company. The Company has already
repaid the loan on 23 March 2009.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at
least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital
was held by the public as at the date of this report, being
the latest practical date prior to the date of this report.

Post Balance Sheet Event
Details of the significant post balance sheet event of the
Group are set out in note 46 to the financial statements.

Auditors

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their
reappointment as auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Ling Siu Man, Simon
Chairman

Hong Kong
24 July 2009
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Compliance with Code on Corporate
Governance

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
considers that good corporate governance of the
Company is central to safeguarding the interests of
the shareholders of the Group and enhancing the
performance of the Group. The Board is committed to
ensure a high standard of corporate governance. The
Company’s corporate governance practices are based
on the principles (the “Principles”), code provisions (the
“Code Provisions”) as set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”).

The Company has applied the Principles and the Code
Provisions and complied with the CG Code during the
financial year ended 31 March 2009, with a deviation
from the Code Provisions (i) A.2.1 in respect of separate
roles of Chairman and chief executive officer, and (ii) A.4.2
in respect of retirement of directors of the Company
(“Director”) by rotation at least once every three years.

Set out below are the status and details of compliance
by the Company of the CG Code for the year ended 31
March 2009.

The Board

Board composition

The Board has in its composition a balanced of skills
and experience appropriate for the requirements of the
business of the issuer. The Board has a balanced mix
Directors, i.e. 4 executive Directors, and 3 independent
non-executive Directors. The list of all Directors is set
out under “Corporate Information” on page 2 and the
biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 8 to 9
of this report, which demonstrates a diversity of skills,
expertise, experience and qualifications.

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in
all corporate communications issued by the Company
pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to time.
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The Board (continued)

Board composition (continued)

Save as disclosed hereon, to the best of knowledge of the
Directors, the Board members have no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship with each
other, senior management or substantial shareholders or
controlling shareholders of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive directors.

The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive Director of his
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all independent non-
executive Directors to be independent in accordance with
the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Board meetings

Board meetings were held at least 4 times during the
year roughly on a quarterly basis. Dates for regular
Board meetings are scheduled in advance to provide
sufficient time for the Directors to prepare for. Special
Board meetings will be held when necessary. Notice of
meeting will be given at least 14 days before the meeting.
Directors are consulted for matters to be included in the
agenda and Board papers will be served at least 3 days
before the meeting. Details of the attendance of the
Board meetings held for the year ended 31 March 2009
and up to the date of the publication of this report were as
follows:
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The Board (continued) AP
Board meetings (continued) EEEREA)
Attendance/
Number of Meetings
Name of Director EERS HEEEREE
Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. Ling Siu Man, Simon (Chairman EOSSE(EER
and Managing Director) EFLACIE) 4/4
Mr. Wong Ki Cheung HHERAE 3/4
Ms. Li Fung Ching, Catherine FREZT 4/4
Mr. Lam Kwai Wah MEEE R4 4/4
Mr. Au Wai Man (resigned on 1 January 2009) REERLE(R-_ZSTHE 4/4
—A—HBEH)
Independent Non-executive Directors BIHHTEE
Mr. Pang Hon Chung ZiEpEE 4/4
Mr. Cheng Tsang Wai el a/4
Dr. Chung Hing Wah, Paul EEEE L 4/4
Minutes of the Board, the Audit Committee, the FTE& . %ﬁi/\’“ %ﬁ@ﬂi/\aﬁiﬂﬁi
Remuneration Committee and the Executive Committee B & H) & 3% 30 4% - Q;% AIEm Ay EIE
have been recorded in sufficient details the matters i’jﬁﬁ—mpaﬁ Fﬁﬁ .ﬂﬁ*ﬁiﬂ"jwiﬁ

considered in the meetings. All the minutes are kept by

Eﬁé%ﬂ%%ﬁ%ﬁéﬁL%ﬂ

BRI E

the company secretary and are open for inspection at
any reasonable time on reasonable notice given by any
Director.

Directors can access to the advice and services of the
company secretary to ensure that Board procedures, and
all applicable rules and regulations are properly followed.

In addition, all Directors are regularly updated on
corporate governance and regulatory matters. There is a
guideline for Directors to obtain independent professional
advice at the expense of the Company in the furtherance
of their duties. The Company has also arranged
appropriate director and officer liability insurance cover in
respect of legal action against its Directors.
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The Board (continued)

Chairman and chief executive officer

Chairman is responsible to manage the affairs of the
Board and the chief executive officer is responsible to
manage the day-to-day operation of the Company’s
business.

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman
and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual.

Mr. Ling Siu Man, Simon is the Chairman and chief
executive officer of the Group. He is responsible for
the Group’s overall strategic planning, management,
objectives setting and corporate development as well
as the management of the Board’s affairs. The Board
considers that this structure is more effective and efficient
in running the business. The Board believes that Mr.
Ling's appointment to the posts of Chairman and chief
executive officer is beneficial to the business prospects of
the Group.

Nomination, appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors

The Group has a formal, considerate and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new Director to the
Board. The Group has adopted a nomination procedures
and the Board, based on the criteria established, evaluate
and select candidates for the directorships. The Board
reviews the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board on
a regular basis and make recommendations regarding
any proposed changes. The Directors identifies suitable
individual qualified to become Board members and makes
recommendation on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors if necessary,
in particular, candidates who can add value to the
management through their contribution in the relevant
strategic business areas and whose appointments will
result on the constitution of strong and diverse Board.
The meeting of the Board regarding the nomination
of Directors shall be held at least once a year or when
necessary. In case any Director resigns from the Board,
reasons for the resignation will be disclosed in the
announcement.
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The Board (continued)

Nomination, appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors (continued)

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject
to re-election. The existing non-executive Directors of
the Company, except for Mr. Pang Hon Chung being
independent non-executive Director of the Company,
have a specific term of appointment. All non-executive
Directors are subject to the requirement to retire by
rotation at annual general meetings under the Company's
Articles of Association accomplishing the same objective as
a specific term of appointment.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association,
any new Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the Board should be subject to election
by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment. Every Director, including those appointed
for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

The Company’'s Articles of Association, on the other
hand, is inconsistent with the Code Provision A.4.2 of the
CG Code, which provides that one-third of the Directors
for the time being (save for the Chairman or managing
director or joint managing director), or if their number
is not three nor a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from
office by rotation at least once every three years and
being eligible, offer themselves for re—election at annual
general meetings. The Board considers that Mr. Ling
Siu Man, Simon, Chairman of the Board, should not be
subject to retirement to ensure continuity of leadership
and stability for growth of the Company.

Responsibilities of directors

The principal focus of the Board is on the overall strategic
development of the Group. The Board also monitors the
financial performance and the internal controls of the
Group’s business operations.
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The Board (continued)

Responsibilities of directors (continued)

In addition, the Board is charged with promoting the
success of the Group by directing and supervising its
affairs in a responsible and effective manner. Each
Director has a duty to act in good faith in the best
interests of the Company. The Directors are aware of their
collective and individual responsibilities to all shareholders
of the Group for the manner in which the affairs of the
Company are managed, controlled and operated.

Director is required to keep abreast of his responsibilities
as a Director and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Group. Non-executive Directors have
the same duties of care and skill and fiduciary duties as
executive Directors.

The functions of non-executive Directors have included
the functions as specified in the Code Provision A.5.2(a)
to (d) of the CG Code.

Delegation by the Board

The Board has delegated functions that are necessary
and incident to carry out the decision of the Board or
to facilitate the day-to-day operation of the Group in
ordinary course of business to the senior management
and divisional heads of different units.

Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated
by the Board to senior management include execution of
business strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board,
implementation of adequate internal controls and risk
management procedures, and compliance with relevant
statutory requirements and rules and regulations.

Supply of and access to information

Directors will be provided in a timely manner with
appropriate information in such form and of such quality
as will enable them to make an informed decision and to
discharge their duties and responsibilities as Directors of
the Company.
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The Board (continued)

Supply of and access to information (continued)

In respect of regular Board meetings, and so far
as practicable in all other cases, an agenda and
accompanying Board papers are sent in full to all
Directors in a timely manner and at least 3 days before
the intended date of a Board meeting.

Management is regularly reminded by the company
secretary that they have an obligation to supply the Board
and its committees with adequate information in a timely
manner to enable them to make informed decisions. The
information supplied must be complete and reliable. The
Board and each Director have separate and independent
access to the Company’s senior management for making
further enquires where necessary.

Training for directors

Every newly appointed Director of the Group will receive
an information package from the company secretary on
his appointment. The package will include guidelines and
information such as:

(a) Guidelines on Directors’ Duties;

(b) Brief notes and guidelines on Code on Corporate
Governance Practices;

(c) The Group's code of conduct regarding the securities
transactions by the Directors;

(d) Brief notes and guidelines on Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of the Company;

(e) The Company’s Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Company;

(f) A copy of the Corporate Governance Report; and

(g9) A copy of the Company’s Corporate Governance
Handbook.

The senior management and the company secretary
will subsequently conduct such briefing as is necessary
to ensure that the Director has a proper understanding
of the operations and business of the Group, and
the Director is aware of his obligation under statue
and common law, the Listing Rules, applicable legal
requirements and other regulatory requirements.
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The Board (continued)

Directors’ securities transactions

The Group has adopted its code of conduct for securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in the Model Code
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having
made specific enquiry to all Directors, the Company
has confirmed that all Directors have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout
the year ended 31 March 2009.

Remuneration of Directors

The Company enters into directors’ service agreements
with each of the executive Directors. Such agreements
set out the relevant terms for remuneration and other
benefits. The remuneration of the Directors was
determined with reference to the job responsibilities of
the Directors, market conditions and the performance of
the Company.

Remuneration Committee

A majority of the members of the Remuneration
Committee are independent non-executive Directors.
This committee is authorised by the Board and makes
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management. Details of the attendance of the meeting
for the year ended 31 March 2009 and up to the date of
this report were as follows:

Members of the
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Attendance/Number of Meeting

Remuneration Committee FHEESRE HEEEEE
Mr. Cheng Tsang Wai (Chairman) Bl (E g (£/E) 1”7
Mr. Pang Hon Chung TER LA 01
Ms. Li Fung Ching, Catherine ZEEZ T 1/1

There is a formal and transparent procedure for setting
policy and procedure for fixing the remuneration
packages of all Directors and senior management. The
Group will gather and summarise information relating
to remuneration policy and other remuneration related
matters. The Remuneration Committee will meet at least
once a year and consider the above information and
make recommendation to the Board and have access to
professional advice if necessary.
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Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible to present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the Group’s performance,
position and prospect in the annual and interim reports.
Other price-sensitive information and financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other statutory
requirements will be timely disclosed and reported.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for keeping
proper accounting records and preparing accounts which
give a true and fair view for the year ended 31 March
2009.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the “Independent Auditors’
Report” on page 35 to 36.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible to ensure that the Group
maintains sound and effective internal controls to
safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the Group’s
assets.

The management is responsible for the Group’s system
of internal controls and the Board is responsible for
reviewing its effectiveness of the Group’s system of
internal control and its subsidiaries at least annually.
The function of reviewing its effectiveness of the
Group's system of internal control is delegated to Audit
Committee by the Board. The system will cover all
material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions. The
system of internal control is designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of
the internal control of the Group. The internal audit
department carries out annual risk assessment on each
audit area and derives an annual audit plan according to
their risk rankings. The audit plan is reviewed and agreed
by the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee receives
summary reports from internal audit department. Copy of
the minutes of Audit Committee meeting will also be sent
to the Board for information.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors. Mr. Pang Hon Chung, chairman of
the Audit Committee has the appropriate professional
qualification and experience in financial matters as
required by the Listing Rules. This committee is authorised
by the Board and responsible for reviewing the financial
reports, internal controls principles and for maintaining
an appropriate relationship with the Company’s auditors.
Details of the attendance of the Audit Committee
meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2009 and
up to the date of this report were as follows:

Members of the

REPORT

ENREQH-RBUFNTEFEN - &
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ERE - -BE_TTNAF-A=T—BLLHF
ERBEAREARBT 2 ERZESSH
Z BB

Attendance/Number of Meetings

Audit Committee EREEENE HEEERE
Mr. Pang Hon Chung (Chairman) TEREE(FFE) 172
Mr. Cheng Tsang Wai EBEEE 1/2
Dr. Chung Hing Wah, Paul EREEL 2/2
The Audit Committee met with the external auditors FR @ BXZESEINEZHMESE Tk
during the year to discuss any areas of concern during EZBREFTMAEBEE - BEREZESHF
the audits. The Audit Committee reviewed the interim HH&@F%WWE;%% SAICHETEN - &
and annual reports before submission to the Board. The 1#%Z&EB&E /Eb' I BRRENES
Audit Committee focuses not only on the impact of the — FZZ£ JTAL—r = s /E 8 - EWRARERE

changes in accounting polices and practices but also on
the compliance with accounting standards, the Listing
Rules and the legal requirements.

The Audit Committee has not taken a different view
from the Board regarding the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of the Company’s external
auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31
March 2009 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

During the year under review, the remuneration paid
to the Company’s auditors, Ernst & Young, is set out as
follows:

B ELEN B =
REEFA 2 TARRZRBENLZ K
EhEBmzMemT

(HK$"000)
(B%T )

Audit services EZRE

1,180

1,180

Executive Committee

All of the members of the Executive Committee are
executive Directors. This committee is chaired by Mr.
Ling Siu Man, Simon. The other members are Mr. Wong
Ki Cheung, Ms. Li Fung Ching, Catherine, Mr. Lam
Kwai Wah and Mr. Au Wai Man (resigned on 1 January
2009). This committee is authorised by the Board and
is responsible for monitoring the execution of strategic
plans and day-to-day operations of the business units and
making decision on matters relating to the management
and operations.

Details of the attendance of the Executive Committee
meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2009 and
up to the date of this report were as follows:

Members of the Executive Committee

Mr. Ling Siu Man, Simon (Chairman)

Mr. Wong Ki Cheung

Ms. Li Fung Ching, Catherine

Mr. Lam Kwai Wah

Mr. Au Wai Man (resigned on 1 January 2009)
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Securities Transaction by the Relevant
Employees

Under the Code Provision A.5.4 of the CG Code, the
Board has established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code for relevant
employees in respect of their dealings in the Company’s
securities. “Relevant employee” includes any employee
of the Group or a Director or employee of a subsidiary or
holding company of the issuer, because of such office or
employment, is likely to be in possession of unpublished
price sensitive information in relation to the Group and
its securities. Having made specific enquiry to all relevant
employees, the Company confirms that all relevant
employees have complied with the written guidelines
regarding securities transactions for the year.

Corporate Communication

The Group should announce its annual results and interim
results in a timely manner before the time limits set out
in the Listing Rules. Separate resolutions are proposed
at the annual general meetings on each separate issue,
including the election of individual Directors. In addition,
procedures for demanding a poll at the annual general
meeting will be included in the circular to shareholders
dispatched together with this report.

The Group has also maintained a website of
http://www.tonic.com.hk which enables shareholders
of the Company, investors and the general public to
access to the information of the Group on a timely basis.
Financial information and all corporate communications
of the Group are made available on the Group's website
and updated regularly.
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Elf ERNST & YOUNG
= Ik

To the shareholders of Tonic Industries Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Tonic
Industries Holdings Limited set out on pages 37 to 144,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 March 2009, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31 March 2009 and of the Group's loss
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note
2 to the financial statements concerning the adoption
of the going concern basis on which the financial
statements have been prepared. The Group incurred a
net loss of HK$174,887,000 during the year ended 31
March 2009, and the Group's current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by approximately HK$211,482,000.
These conditions, along with the Group’s ability to extend
its short-term loans upon maturity; obtain long-term
financing facilities to refinance its short-term loans; derive
adequate operating cash flow from its existing operations,
as set forth in note 2, indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the
Group's and Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
18th Floor

Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street, Central

Hong Kong

24 July 2009
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
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Year ended 31 March 2009
B2 —FENF=A=+—HIFE

2009 2008
—EENF —TENEF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt BET T BT
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FEREEL
REVENUE WA 6 2,055,805 2,120,846
Cost of sales $HEE Ak AN (2,075,771)  (1,953,980)
Gross profit/(loss) ER(E8) (19,966) 166,866
Other income and gains Efth i A R e 6 37,692 5,619
Selling and distribution costs $HE K& D sHAk 2N (3,313) (9,750)
Administrative expenses TH S (78,970) (73,237)
Professional expenses on ERIETRE 2 EHET W
aborted projects - (21,326)
Fair value losses on equity investments &~ F(EzF AR Z
at fair value through profit or loss BRI E 2 A FEEE (1,488) (6,432)
Finance costs & AN 8 (25,716) (36,470)
(91,761) 25,270
Provision for impairment of assets BEREREG 7 (60,697) (13,256)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BB ATER,(EE) 7 (152,458) 12,014
Tax I8 11 (140) (13,515)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM BEREER
CONTINUING OPERATIONS ZERFEEE (152,598) (1,501)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION ERIEREEL
Profit/(loss) for the year from BRI ¥ 7 NF[E
a discontinued operation sm A, (E1E) 13 (22,289) 7,186
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR KATEREEAEML
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY REERF(FE)
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY (174,887) 5,685
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE AN EBEER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY BEA
EQUITY HOLDERS EESRER(EH8)
OF THE COMPANY 14
Basic AR
— For profit/(loss) for the year —REFEHFN(EE) (HK16.5 cents) HKO0.6 cent
= B
- For loss from continuing operations — —#54E& & £ 15 EE (HK14.4 cents)  (HKO0.2 cent)
B (il
Diluted e N/A N/A
TEA i A

“TTNFFR ROIBXERERLF
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

mEEERER
31 March 2009
—EFEANF=A=+—H

2009 2008
—EEAF ZZEE)N\F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
HtaE BT T BETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M R KR 15 661,300 736,084
Prepaid land lease payments TAfS LA E R 16 41,091 43,279
Intangible assets W|IEE 17 10,345 22,716
Available-for-sale investment AIHEHEZKRE 20 - -
Non-current portion of H b fE R IE
an other receivable MBI - 2,470
Deposits for acquisition of items of BEVE BELR
property, plant and equipment REHEBES 53 2,399
Total non-current assets EMENEELE 712,789 806,948
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories 7E 21 353,832 526,835
Accounts and bills receivables RUBER R ZE 22 68,495 207,724
Factored accounts receivables FE YRR IEBR RN 23 53,394 118,451
Current portion of loans receivable JEWE BN D - 93
Prepayments, deposits and TEFIE - Ze &k
other receivables o Ath jE W kIR 24 16,418 2117342
Prepaid land lease payments TEfF - A E K 16 209 971
Equity investments at fair value through 3% A F{Ext ABzE
profit or loss 2RI E 25 2,592 4,080
Derivative financial instruments TTESMT A 26 382 -
Cash and bank balances He MRITHETT 27 36,758 31,031
Total current assets MEEERAE 532,780 910,527
CURRENT LIABILITIES A IN=R
Accounts payables FERTBE R 28 342,022 507,856
Accrued liabilities and other payables EETEeEREMENTKIE 29 43,548 53,143
Interest-bearing bank and RITFEER R
other borrowings HifgE 30 284,033 303,183
Bank advances on factored accounts FEUWRNRIBERZ 2
receivables RITERK 23 53,394 118,451
Derivative financial instruments TEeMmT A 26 - 3,325
Tax payable AN 21,265 18,635
Total current liabilities MENE EEEE 744,262 1,004,593

3 8 TONIC INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2009



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
HmEEERER

31 March 2009
—EFENF=A=+—8H

2009 2008
—EENF —TENF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
Kz BET T BT

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REEEEEE (211,482) (94,066)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEABR

LIABILITIES REEE 501,307 712,882
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FERBEE
Interest-bearing bank and RITEFFEEH R

other borrowings HEmEge 30 61,144 96,686
Net deferred tax liabilities I TE B (& F 5 32 53,483 54,446
Total non-current liabilities EREEEETE 114,627 151,132
Net assets BEFE 386,680 561,750
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to equity AATEZFEA

holders of the Company R
Issued capital BT A 33 105,789 105,789
Reserves HiE 35(a) 280,891 455,961
Total equity RS MAEE 386,680 561,750

Ling Siu Man, Simon Li Fung Ching, Catherine
BEDX ZR e
Director Director
EZE s

“TTNFFR ROIBXERERLF 3 9



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 March 2009
BE—FTFNF=A=1+—HIFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ADAREREAEE
Share Asset Exchange Proposed
Issued  premium revaluation fluctuation final
capital  account Contributed  reserve  reserve Retained  dividend
BB R surplus EE  NER®  profits BRE  Total
Bx RER  AABR  EfiEG i REEN KRS h
Notes  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000
M ABTn AETn AETn BT T BTn BT #ETr
At 1 April 2007 RZEZ+ENA-A 95,289 59,098 280 98,165 7,029 271,930 9529 541,370
Exchange realignment EREE - - - - 1434 - - 1434
Total income and expense ~ PNEREERAL
for the year recognised ~ REEWAR
directly in equity R s - - - - 143 - - 143
Profit for the year REEREF - - - - - 5,685 - 5,685
Total income and expense ~ AFERAR
for the year FxES - - - - 1434 5,685 = 7,119
Issue of shares ki 310500 1239 - - - - - 8%
Share issue expenses RAZTRH 33 - (100) - - - - - (100)
Final 2007 dividend paid B -EELERSRE = = = = - - (959)  (9529)
At 31 March 2008 RZEEN\F=A=1-H 105,789 71,388* 280*  98,165* 8,463*  277,665* - 561,750
At 1 April 2008 R=ZZ\FWA-A 105,789 71,388 280 98,165 8463 277,665 - 561,750
Written back on disposal B ERER - - - (1,364) - 1,554 - 190
Surplus on revaluation B AR 15 = = = 1177 = = = 1177
Deferred tax credited PEEEEA/ ()2
(debited) to equity: B :

Surplus on revaluation R 2 - - - (274) - - - (274)
Change in tax rate TEEE 32 - - - 7 - - - 7
Exchange realignment A= - - - - (1,283) - - (1,283)

Total income and expense ~ PNEREERAL
for the year recognised ~ REEWAR
directly in equity ByiaE - - - (454)  (1,283) 1,554 - (183)
Loss for the year REEER - - - - - (174,887) - (174,887)
Total income and expense ~ AFERAR
for the year B - - - (454)  (1283) (173,333) - (175,070)
At 31 March 2009 RZEENE=A=1-H 105,789 71,388* 0% 97,711* 7,180 104,332* - 386,680
a These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * hEREFERERAEEEBERANEYK
HK$280,891,000 (2008: HK$455,961,000) in the consolidated 280,891,0007C (= Z T )\ 4: ##455,961,0007T)
balance sheet. RERE -

40
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

AERERER

Year ended 31 March 2009
B2 —FENF=A=+—HIFE

2009 2008
—EZAE —TE)N\F
NOTES HKS$'000 HK$'000
Kt BT T BEETIT
CASH FLOWS FROM REXBEEZ
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BERE
Profit/(loss) before tax: BE SR (EE)
From continuing operations REFELLEES (152,458) 12,014
From a discontinued operation RECKIELEERE 13 (21,980) 7,919
Adjustments for: ERBIZIERE
Finance costs BB RKA 8 25,955 36,870
Bank interest income |RITHAEUA 6 (174) (1,504)
Dividend income from listed KEEMEEZ
investments f& B WA 6 (143) (153)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of HEME - MENEE
property, plant and equipment BE 2z (W), BE 7 (29,886) 3,968
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HEHB AR
ZWas 6 - (1,922)
Fair value losses/(gains), net: ANEEEE (K -
HEE
Equity investments at fair value BRATE ABE=®
through profit or loss ZIRAIGE 1,488 6,432
Derivative financial instruments PTESm T AE-EE
— forward currency contracts, net REIEH - 7 (382) 3,325
Depreciation e 7 66,813 73,333
Provision against inventories FEEE 7 10,981 4,201
Recognition of prepaid land lease HERIAR T3
payments THEKIE 7 981 967
Amortisation of software RN AR R
development costs and trademarks [t 7 357 355
Amortisation of deferred PR IE I BE A AN
development costs geiigact 7 8,330 11,280
Provision for impairment of assets BERERE 7 65,795 13,256
(24,323) 170,341
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL/(8m) 162,022 (215,527)
Decrease/(increase) in accounts and RIS BR R K ZE iR
bills receivables WA (3Ehn) 131,132 (14,057)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits TE IR « e R EAM
and other receivables U FRIE R, 2,124 39,357
(Decrease)/increase in accounts payables  FERTBE=R (R4 ), /10 (175,055) 196,962
Decrease in accrued liabilities and EstaEREMERN
other payables SRIER (25,986) (13,349)
Increase in factored accounts receivables &SR IR BE R IZ AN (53,394) (118,451)
Cash generated from operations KEEXBESE RS 16,520 45,276
Interest received B U FI 2 174 1,504
Interest paid EfFE (25,361) (35,518)
Interest element on finance lease MEHRERS
rental payments FEEBD (594) (1,352)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ERBBFEH (55) (52)
Overseas taxes paid EREINRIE - (672)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from EEIREE
operating activities Be(Rl),/FTAFE (9,316) 9,186

“TTNFFR ROIBXERERLF
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GEREMEBR

Year ended 31 March 2009
B2 —FTENF=H=1+—HIFZE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Dividends received from listed
investments

Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of an equity
investment at fair value through
profit or loss

Net inflow from disposal of a subsidiary

Additions to intangible assets

Decrease in loans receivable

Deposits for acquisition of items of
property, plant and equipment

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of shares, net

Decrease in trust receipt loans

New bank loans

Bank advances on factored accounts
receivables

Repayment of bank loans

Capital element of finance lease
rental payments

Dividend paid

Net cash outflow from
financing activities

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Bank overdrafts, secured

42
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2009
—EThF
HK$°000
BT

143
(13,921)

35,619

(3.867)
93

18,067

(76,059)
173,456

53,394
(151,883)

(8,445)
(9,537)
(786)

26,732

197

26,143

36,758
(10,615)

26,143

2008
—BE)N\E
HK$'000
BETIT

153
(74,196)

6,848

963
4,525
(7,123)

188

(2,346)

(70,988)

22,790
(48,336)
83,003

118,451
(159,764)

(11,168)
(9,529)
(4,553)

(66,355)

92,698

389

26,732

31,031
(4,299)

26,732



BALANCE SHEET
EESER

31 March 2009
—EENF=A=+—H

2009 2008
—EENF —TENF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Biat BT T BETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NGRY YN o 19 269,488 270,085
Available-for-sale investment AHEEZRE 20 - -
Total non-current assets JEnEEEEE 269,488 270,085
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Cash and bank balances WE NiR1TTETE 27 138 138
CURRENT LIABILITIES A=K
Accrued liabilities and other payables EztEaEREMmEMNKIE 29 9 9
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEBE 129 129
Net assets BEFEE 269,617 270,214
EQUITY =
Issued capital B TR A 33 105,789 105,789
Reserves HiE 35(b) 163,828 164,425
Total equity RS MAEE 269,617 270,214
Ling Siu Man, Simon Li Fung Ching, Catherine
BEDX =R e
Director Director
Ea EE

“TTNFFR ROIBXERERLF 43



B RS R aR M aE

31 March 2009
—EENF=HA=+—H

44

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The
registered office of the Company is located at P.O.
Box 309 GT, Ugland House, South Church Street,
George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands,
British West Indies.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The subsidiaries are engaged in the design,
manufacture and trading of consumer electronic
products and components and home appliance
products. During the year ended 31 March 2009,
the Group discontinued the operation of its home
appliances products division.

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company
and the ultimate holding company of the Group is
Success Forever Limited, which is incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands.

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the Group
incurred a net loss of HK$174,887,000 and the
Group had net current liabilities of approximately
HK$211,482,000 as at 31 March 2009.

In order to improve the Group’s financial position,
immediate liquidity and cash flows and otherwise to
sustain the Group as a going concern, the Group is
implementing the following measures:

(a) as at the balance sheet date, the Group was in
the advanced stage of discussion with a bank
for an additional banking facility of RMB150
million (equivalent to HK$170 million) and to
extend its existing RMB110 million (equivalent
to HK$125 million) bank loans due by February
2010 to July 2010. Subsequent to the balance
sheet date on 20 July 2009, the Group and the
bank signed letters of intent in respect of the
abovementioned banking facilities;

RNEBEXZEREBRATAA—RNHASE
EAMKZZERAF « KRR ZFE
= EEALFP.O. Box 309 GT, Ugland
House, South Church Street, George
Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands,
British West Indies °

ARAEBEHHREZER - HBAF
RERT REREEHEETERSR
FHERREEREM - RBEE-_FTTAH
FZA=T—BLFEAR AEEKL
HERFEEAREm AT %75

EERRAKENERRAR RERE
[EENCIVE Y =g e VA

Success Forever Limited °

REBEZ2-_ZEZTNLF=ZA=+—81t
FE AEEESEBIFEAASEK
174,887,0007C * MAEBR=ZZEZT N5
—A=T—BZRBEBEFELNR/BE
211,482,0007T °

RWEAREZMBEARR - ERHRD
B ReRERARAKERFEL
2 AEERERDUATHR :

(a) REER  AEEHE-—RFTH
B E A F£ AR ¥ 150,000,000 7T
(8 & R 7 ¥ 170,000,000 7T ) Z
BOMNMEITEEURBHERBEAR
¥ 110,000,000 7T ( 10 & 1 & ¥
125,000,0007T ) Z $R1TE 3k 2 I 5
FhH-Z—ZTFE_AEEEZE_T—
TFELARRGIEERE - REE
HH%  AEBR-_ZZTNFLA
—+H  BRTHEMETEHER

BFEAE
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B A R MY RE

31 March 2009
—EFANF=A=+—H

subsequent to the balance sheet date on 16
July 2009 and 17 July 2009, the Group was
granted waivers from certain banks in relation
to its non-compliance of covenant requirements
as detailed in note 30;

subsequent to the balance sheet date, the
Group disposed of certain of its office buildings
located in Hong Kong for a cash consideration
of HK$20 million and the directors of the
Company are also taking measures to dispose
of other non-core assets of the Group; and

the directors of the Company have been taking
various cost control measures to tighten the
costs of operations and various general and
administrative expenses.

The directors of the Company consider that the
Group will have sufficient working capital to finance
its operations and financial obligations as and when
they fall due, and accordingly, are satisfied that it is
appropriate to prepare the financial statements on
a going concern basis. The consolidated financial
statements do not include any adjustments relating
to the carrying amount and reclassification of assets
and liabilities that might be necessary should the
Group be unable to continue as a going concern.

—TTAEER

(b) WENHIEE30FTREL - MAEE R -

AEBR-_ZETNAFELATRAR
“ETAFEA LR BLERE

BTROREMES TRITRXT#H
ke

(0 REEBR®%  AEBUBESRES
#520,000,000 T EHMVRAEEZ
ETHARKE  MARRZEZIN
BB ELSR IS LA S AR B H A 3E A%
DNEE &

(d) ANDQREEDHRIZIBERAEH S
o MR B A A RS TE— R
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AARESRAREBB AR ANEE

&S BB A E B S B
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AEEE AR BCE T B SR
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B RS R aR M aE

31 March 2009
—EENF=HA=+—H
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These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) (which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for buildings, derivative financial instruments and
certain investments, which have been measured at
fair value. These financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2009. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of
acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases. All income,
expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting
from intercompany transactions and intercompany
balances within the Group are eliminated on
consolidation in full.

HEFBRRDBRERTESFTNLE
(BRGNS ) EMOB BRI
SREA(THFEMHHREEL ] (PR
PIBEREMBHRELER - FE G ER
(IEBGER]) MBRE)  FEQR
SR REB RGO KERE -
WIRE LA T AR - BT - 014
EMTARETRETARFENE -
MBmRAEE(TEB 2 BRE
dAES  FIBEBESNBRAAZT
2o

REREEE
HEMBRRBEARTALEMB LA
(B AKEDBE_TTAEF=A
=T HLEFENTBRE - HHELR
BV SRAE B R B H (BN S B8 HR e o)
ZB)RGFA AR - YHEEAEETAA
REEREAWEGRZAR/L - £E
ARARBNRZGELEZ —IRA ~ X
RABHBE REBAR R NG RY
RERE IR B R ABEH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B A R MY RE

31 March 2009
—EFANF=A=+—H

3.2.IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS
The Group has adopted the following new
interpretations and amendments to HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year’s financial statements.
Except for in certain cases, giving rise to new and
revised accounting policies and additional disclosures,
the adoption of these new interpretations and
amendments has had no significant effect on these
financial statements.

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7 Amendments to HKAS 39
Amendments Financial Instruments:
Recognition and
Measurement and
HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures -
Reclassification of

Financial Assets
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession

Arrangements
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19 - The Limit

on a Defined Benefit
Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and

their Interaction

The principal effects of adopting these new
interpretations and amendments to HKFRSs are as
follows:

(a) Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
and HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures - Reclassification of Financial
Assets
The amendments to HKAS 39 permit an entity
to reclassify a non-derivative financial asset
classified as held for trading, other than a
financial asset designated by an entity as at
fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition, out of the fair value through
profit or loss category if the financial asset
is no longer held for the purpose of selling
or repurchasing in the near term, if specified
criteria are met.

3.2 ¥a] REBRT E R B R E2ER

02

AEBRRANFERHRRE B RRA
UTHaEREEYHRELENNE
7] BRALBERBHEZRAFGIFTM
RIBETE S S BERMBIMRESS - 5
BELRENETHLENHERRES
N2

BRGEAEN  BAEGEREN

LRERHBREEN  DBITA AR

FTHR(BATA) TERBRYME
REERFETH
THTA: RE
-HIFEEER
PAELER]

EE(ERMBRE  RERTFELH

2EZ89)

-REE 125
ER(BRMBRE BRGEA
2EZ89) FI19R-REEF
-RES 145 BEZRA &K
BT EXRART
B

RFT TR RE B AR B0
STEBREMT

(a) BERETERAEIVRLHTA - &
AR ERBBUBHREEAFET
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ZEZIERT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 75 S P =

31 March 2009
—FEENF=HA=+—H

3.2.IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)
(a) Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial

48

Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
and HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Reclassification of Financial
Assets (continued)

A debt instrument that would have met the
definition of loans and receivables (if it had not
been required to be classified as held for trading
at initial recognition) may be classified out of
the fair value through profit or loss category
or (if it had not been designated as available
for sale) may be classified out of the available-
for-sale category to the loans and receivables
category if the entity has the intention and
ability to hold it for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

In rare circumstances, financial assets that
are not eligible for classification as loans and
receivables may be transferred from the held-
for-trading category to the available-for-sale
category or to the held to maturity category (in
the case of a debt instrument), if the financial
asset is no longer held for the purpose of selling
or repurchasing in the near term.

The financial asset shall be reclassified at its
fair value on the date of reclassification and
the fair value of the financial asset on the date
of reclassification becomes its new cost or
amortised cost, as applicable. The amendments
to HKFRS 7 require extensive disclosures of
any financial asset reclassified in the situations
described above. The amendments are effective
from 1 July 2008.

As the Group has not reclassified any of its
financial instruments, the amendments have
had no impact on the financial position or
results of operations of the Group.

TONIC INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2009
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B A R MY RE

31 March 2009
—EFANF=A=+—H

3.2.IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (continued)

(b) HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession
Arrangements
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 applies to service concession
operators and explains how to account for
obligation undertaken and the rights received in
service concession arrangements. No member
of the Group is an operator and, therefore,
this interpretation has had no impact on the
financial position or results of operations of the
Group.

(c) HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19 - The Limit on a
Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 addresses how to assess the
limit under HKAS 19 Employee Benefits, on the
amount of a refund or a reduction in future
contributions in relation to a defined benefit
scheme that can be recognised as an asset,
including situations when a minimum funding
requirement exists. As the Group has no
defined benefit scheme, the interpretation has
had no effect on these financial statements.

3.3.IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not
yet effective, in these financial statements.

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27 Amendments to HKFRS 1
Amendments First-time Adoption of
HKFRSs and HKAS 27

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements — Cost
of an Investment in a
Subsidiary, Jointly
Controlled Entity or
Associate!

HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of
HKFRSs2

3.2 HET R BT B B Y KRS EL
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(b) B (EEFERERBESS)-
RESNRRBETRELH
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3.3.IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 2 Amendments

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 8

HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1
Amendments

HKAS 39 Amendment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and
HKAS 39 Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13

50

Amendments to HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment —
Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations’

Business Combinations?

Amendments to HKFRS 7
Financial Instruments:
Disclosures - Improving
Disclosures about Financial
Instruments’

Operating Segments’

Presentation of Financial
Statements’
Borrowing Costs’

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements2
Amendments to HKAS 32
Financial Instruments:
Presentation and
HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements —
Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations
Arising on Liquidation’
Amendment to HKAS 39
Financial Instruments:
Recognition and
Measurement - Eligible
Hedged Items?
Amendments to
HK(IFRIC)-Int 9
Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives and HKAS 39
Financial Instruments:
Recognition and
Measurement
— Embedded Derivatives®
Customer Loyalty
Programmes?
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HK(IFRIC)-Int 15

HK(FRIC)-Int 16

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17

HK(FRIC)-Int 18

Agreements for the
Construction of
Real Estate!

Hedges of a Net Investment in
a Foreign Operation*

Distribution of Non-cash
Assets to Owners?

Transfers of Assets from
Customers?

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has also
issued Improvements to HKFRSs* which sets out
amendments to a number of HKFRSs primarily
with a view to removing inconsistencies and clarify
wording. Except for the amendment to HKFRS 5
which is effective for the annual periods on or after
1 July 2009, other amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
although there are separate transitional provisions
for each standard.

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2008

Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 October 2008

Effective for annual periods ending on or after
30 June 2009

Improvements to HKFRSs contains amendments
to HKFRS 5, HKFRS 7, HKAS 1, HKAS 8, HKAS
10, HKAS 16, HKAS 18, HKAS 19, HKAS 20,
HKAS 23, HKAS 27, HKAS 28, HKAS 29, HKAS
31, HKAS 34, HKAS 36, HKAS 38, HKAS 39,
HKAS 40 and HKAS 41.
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The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs
upon initial application. So far, it has concluded that
while the adoption of HKFRS 8 and HKAS 1 (Revised)
may result in new or amended disclosures and the
adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised), HKAS 27 (Revised)
and HKAS 23 (Revised) may result in changes in
accounting policies, these new and revised HKFRSs
are unlikely to have a significant impact on the
Group's results of operations and financial position.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and
operating policies the Company controls, directly or
indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s income statement to the extent of
dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Group's interest in the net fair
value of the acquirees’ identifiable assets acquired,
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed as at
the date of acquisition.

Goodwill previously eliminated against
consolidated retained profits

Prior to the adoption of the HKICPA's Statement
of Standard Accounting Practice 30 “Business
Combinations” (“SSAP 30”) in 2001, goodwill arising
on acquisition was eliminated against consolidated
retained profits in the year of acquisition. On
the adoption of HKFRS 3, such goodwill remains
eliminated against consolidated retained profits and is
not recognised in the income statement when all or
part of the business to which the goodwill relates is
disposed of or when a cash-generating unit to which
the goodwill relates becomes impaired.
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Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, deferred tax assets and
financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's value
in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the income statement in the period in which it
arises.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as
to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist
or may have decreased. If such an indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
certain financial assets is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years.
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3.4.SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

54

the party, directly or indirectly through one or
more intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled
by, or is under common control with, the
Group; (ii) has an interest in the Group that
gives it significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) has joint control over the Group;

the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its holding company;

the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (b);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for
which significant voting power in such entity
resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (b) or (c); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group,
or of any entity that is a related party of the
Group.
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Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost or
valuation less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Expenditure incurred after items of
property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the income statement in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where it
can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure
has resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an
item of property, plant and equipment, and where
the cost of the item can be measured reliably, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of
that asset or as a replacement.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to
ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does
not differ materially from its carrying amount.
Changes in the values of property, plant and
equipment are dealt with as movements in the
asset revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve
is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual
asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to
the income statement. Any subsequent revaluation
surplus is credited to the income statement to the
extent of the deficit previously charged. On disposal
of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous
valuations is transferred to retained profits as a
movement in reserves.
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3.4.SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESTTHEME (@)

56

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
or valuation of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Buildings 4% on the straight-line basis

Leasehold improvements ~ 10% to 25% on the reducing
balance basis

10% to 25% on the reducing
balance basis

10% to 25% on the reducing
balance basis

Motor vehicles 30% on the reducing balance basis

Moulds 25% on the straight-line basis

Furniture and fixtures

Equipment and tools

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
least at each balance sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the income statement in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.
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Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Construction in progress represents buildings,
leasehold improvements, and moulds under
construction in the mainland of the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC” or “Mainland China"”)
which are not yet ready for their intended use.
Construction in progress is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

Intangible assets

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may
be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each balance
sheet date.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the income
statement as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the
asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.
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Intangible assets (continued)

Research and development costs (continued)
Deferred product development costs are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
impairment losses. They are amortised using the
straight-line basis over the commercial lives of the
underlying products but not exceeding five years,
commencing from the date when the products are
put into commercial production.

Trademarks

Trademarks are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. They are
amortised using the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives but not exceeding ten years.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards
and risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other
than legal title, are accounted for as finance leases.
At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the
leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the
minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element,
to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held
under capitalised finance leases are included in
property, plant and equipment and depreciated over
the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the income statement so as to
provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the
lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases,
but are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.
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Leases (continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group
is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets,
and rentals receivable under operating leases are
credited to the income statement on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the
lessee, rentals payable under the operating leases are
charged to the income statement on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating
leases are initially stated at cost and subsequently
recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables, and available-
for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they
are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of
investments not at fair value through profit or loss,
directly attributable transaction costs. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets
after initial recognition and, where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at the
balance sheet date.

The Group assesses whether a contract contains an
embedded derivative when the Group first becomes
a party to it and assesses whether an embedded
derivative is required to be separated from the host
contract when the analysis shows that the economic
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative
are not closely related to those of the host contract.
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Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on investments held
for trading are recognised in the income statement.
The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the
income statement does not include any dividends or
interest earned on these financial assets, which are
recognised in accordance with the policies set out
for “Revenue recognition” below.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Such assets are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction costs. Gains and losses
are recognised in the income statement when the
loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired,
as well as through the amortisation process.
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Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets in unlisted equity securities that are
designated as available for sale or are not classified in
any of the above categories. After initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are measured
at fair value, with gains or losses recognised as a
separate component of equity until the investment is
derecognised or until the investment is determined
to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss previously reported in equity is included in the
income statement.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the
variability in the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant for that investment or (b)
the probabilities of the various estimates within the
range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such securities are stated at
cost less any impairment losses.

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively
traded in organised financial markets is determined
by reference to quoted market bid prices at the
close of business at the balance sheet date. For
investments where there is no active market, fair
value is determined using valuation techniques. Such
techniques include using recent arm’s length market
transactions; reference to the current market value
of another instrument which is substantially the
same; a discounted cash flow analysis; and option
pricing models.
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Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced either directly or
through the use of an allowance account. The
amount of the impairment loss is recognised in the
income statement. Loans and receivables together
with any associated allowance are written off when
the Group first assesses there is no realistic prospect
of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting
the allowance account. Any subsequent reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement, to the extent that the carrying value of
the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the
reversal date.

In relation to accounts and bills receivables, a
provision for impairment is made when there
is objective evidence (such as the probability of
insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the
debtor and significant changes in the technological,
market economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor) that the Group will not
be able to collect all of the amounts due under the
original terms of an invoice. The carrying amount
of the receivables is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Impaired debts are derecognised
when they are assessed as uncollectible.
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Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument
that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment
losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net
of any principal payment and amortisation) and
its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the income statement, is
transferred from equity to the income statement. A
provision for impairment is made for available-for-
sale investments when there has been a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost
or where other objective evidence of impairment
exists. The determination of what is “significant”
or “prolonged” requires judgement. In addition,
the Group evaluates other factors, such as the
share price volatility. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not
reversed through the income statement.
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Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised where:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired;

e the Group retains the rights to receive cash
flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset,
the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing
involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a
written and/or purchased option (including a cash-
settled option or similar provision) on the transferred
asset, the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement is the amount of the transferred asset
that the Group may repurchase, except in the case of
a written put option (including a cash-settled option
or similar provision) on an asset measured at fair
value, where the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value
of the transferred asset and the option exercise
price.
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3.4.SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3.4 FESTTHEREBE (@)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (including
interest-bearing loans and borrowings)
Financial liabilities including accounts and other
payables and interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are initially stated at fair value less directly
attributable transaction costs and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost. The related interest expense is recognised
within “finance costs” in the income statement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income
statement when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the amortisation process.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in the income statement. The
net fair value gain or loss recognised in the income
statement does not include any interest charged on
these financial liabilities.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.
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Derecognition of financial liabilities (continued)
When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the income statement.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging
The Group uses derivative financial instruments
such as forward currency contracts to hedge its
risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations.
Such derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
are carried as assets when the fair value is positive
and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair
value on derivatives that do not qualify for hedge
accounting are taken directly to the income
statement.

The fair value of forward currency contracts is
calculated by reference to current forward exchange
rates for contracts with similar maturity profiles.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.
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Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and
bank balances comprise cash on hand and at banks,
which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the balance sheet date of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present
value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax is recognised in the income statement, or
in equity if it relates to items that are recognised in
the same or a different period directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities.
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Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the balance sheet
date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

e where the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

e where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and
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Income tax (continued)

e in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred tax
assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the
following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold;
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Revenue recognition (continued)
(b) from the rendering of handling fee services,
when the services have been rendered;

(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms;

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying
the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument to the net carrying amount
of the financial assets; and

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established.

Employee benefits

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payment transactions, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees is measured by reference to the fair value
at the date at which they are granted. In valuing
equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of
any performance conditions, other than conditions
linked to the price of the shares of the Company
(“market conditions”), if applicable.
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Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)
The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or
service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on
which the relevant employees become fully entitled
to the award (the “vesting date”). The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions
at each balance sheet date until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group'’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to the income statement for a
period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of
that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting
is conditional upon a market condition, which are
treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the
market condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as
if the terms had not been modified. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification, which
increases the total fair value of the share-based
payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial
to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award
is recognised immediately. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and
is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are
treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.
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Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)
The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of
earnings per share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions
of HKFRS 2 in respect of equity-settled awards and
has applied HKFRS 2 only to equity-settled awards
granted after 7 November 2002 that had not vested
by 1 April 2005.

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for
the Group’s employer voluntary contributions, which
are refunded to the Group when the employee
leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting
fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentages of
their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the income statement as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the central pension scheme.
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are
classified as a separate allocation of retained profits
within the equity section of the balance sheet, until
they have been approved by the shareholders in a
general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum
and articles of association grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions are initially recorded using
the functional currency rates ruling at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the balance sheet date. All differences are taken
to the income statement. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined.
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Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than the Hong
Kong dollar. As at the balance sheet date, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into the presentation currency of the Company
at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date and their income statements are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are included in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred
cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to
that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting
date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.
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Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgement, apart from those involving estimations,
which has the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Impairment of assets

The Group has to exercise judgement in determining
whether an asset is impaired or the event previously
causing the asset impairment no longer exists,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred that may affect the asset value or such
event affecting the asset value has not been in
existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset
can be supported by the net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using
an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management to determine the level
of impairment, including the discount rates or
the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
balance sheet date, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are discussed below.
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Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(i)

(ii)

/6

Useful lives and residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual
values of items of property, plant and
equipment, the Group has to consider various
factors, such as technical or commercial
obsolescence arising from changes or
improvements in production, or from a change
in the market demand for the product or
service output of the asset, expected usage
of the asset, expected physical wear and
tear, the care and maintenance of the asset,
and legal or similar limits on the use of the
asset. The estimation of the useful life of the
asset is based on the experience of the Group
with similar assets that are used in a similar
way. Additional depreciation is made if the
estimated useful lives and/or the residual values
of items of property, plant and equipment
are different from previous estimation. Useful
lives and residual values are reviewed at each
financial year end date based on changes in
circumstances.

Estimation of fair value of buildings

The best evidence of fair value is current prices
in an active market for similar buildings. In
the absence of such information, the Group
considers information from a variety of sources,
including:

(@) by reference to independent valuations;

(b) current prices in an active market for
buildings of a different nature, condition
or location (or subject to different leases or
other contracts), adjusted to reflect those
differences;
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Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Estimation of fair value of buildings

(continued)

(c) recent prices of similar buildings on less
active markets, with adjustments to reflect
any changes in economic conditions since
the date of the transactions that occurred
at those prices; and

(d) discounted cash flow projections based
on reliable estimates of future cash flows,
supported by the terms of any existing
lease and other contracts and (when
possible) by external evidence such as
current market prices for similar buildings
in the same location and condition, and
using discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in
the amount and timing of the cash flows.

The principal assumptions for the Group's
estimation of the fair value include those related
to current market prices for similar buildings in
the same location and condition, appropriate
discount rates, expected future market prices
and future maintenance costs.

The carrying amount of the Group’s buildings
are disclosed in note 15 to the financial
statements.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused
tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. Details are contained in note 32 to
the financial statements.
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Segment information is presented by way of two
segment formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting
basis, by business segment; and (ii) on a secondary
segment reporting basis, by geographical segment.

The Group's operating businesses are structured and
managed separately according to the nature of their
operations and the products they provide. Each of
the Group’s business segments represents a strategic
business unit that offers products which are subject
to risks and returns that are different from those of
the other business segments. Summary details of the
business segments are as follows:

(@) the electronic products and components
segment consists of the design, manufacture
and sale of audio and video products and
components;

(b) the home appliance products segment consists
of the manufacture and sale of home appliance
products, which is separating disclosed as
discontinued operation; and

(c) the corporate segment comprises corporate
income and expense items.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments,
revenues and results are attributed to the segments
based on the location of the customers, and assets
are attributed to the segments based on the location
of the assets.

There were no intersegment sales and transfers
during the year (2008: Nil).
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5.
(a) Business segments
The following tables present revenue,
profit/(loss) and certain asset, liability and
expenditure information of the Group’s business
segments for the years ended 31 March 2009

DEER ()

(@) BEBES
TREJAREEBHFREE=
EEAFR-FBN\EFZA=+—
BIEFERRA  EFL (B &
ETEE  BERAXNEH

and 2008.
Group AL H
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BELEER BAILEEER
Electronic products Home
and components Corporate Total appliance products Consolidated
EFERREH A fazt FEERER &8
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
CEERE ZRR)\E ZEEAE ZTENF CEEnE ZTENE CEEAE DR\ CEEnE ZTE\E
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
BETn  BETT BETR BBt #ETn BT BETn BT AT BT
Segment revenue: AHBA
Sales to external customers  HETHAEF 2,055,805 2,120,846 - - 2,055805 2120846 340,198 300,072 2,396,003 2,420,918
Other segment revenue ~ EAZIA 7,489 2,040 - - 7489 2,040 - - 7489 2,040
Total #:t 2,063,294 2,122,836 - - 2063294 2122836 340,198 300,072 2,403,492 2,422,958
Segment results PPEE (153,615 93,624 (302) (332) (153917) 93292  (21,741) 8319  (175,658) 101,611
Interest income and HEMAR
unallocated income FARMA 30,203 3,579 - - 30,203 3,579
Unallocated expenses RAmy (3,028)  (48387) - - (3,028) (48387)
Finance costs AR (25716) (36,470 (239) (400)  (25,955)  (36,870)
Profit/(loss) before tax BaTaH/ (58) (152458) 12,014  (21980) 7919 (174438) 19933
Tax | (140)  (13,515) (309) (733) (449)  (14,248)
ProfitAloss) for the year EEHT/ (BB) (152,598)  (1,501) (22,289) 7186 (174,887) 5,685
ZETNFFR RAOBEEZERERLT 79
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. DEfER#)
(a) Business segments (continued) (a) IREKEID(E)
Group rEE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BEREEE BALEEER
Electronic products Home
and components Corporate Total appliance products Consolidated
ETERREH M &t FEERER &e
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
ZEENE ZEEN\E CEEAE ZZTNE CTEAE ZZEN\E CTEAE ZBE)\E CTEAF 3R\
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETn BT BETR BETn BETn BT BT BBt #MTn AT
Assets and liabilities EEREE
Segment assets NPEE 1,193,866 1,567,060 - - 1193866 1567060 11,971 115211 1,205,837 1,682,271
Unallocated assets AOWAE 39732 3504
Total assets #EE 1,245,569 1,717,475
Segment liabilities PHEE 376,518 497,943 9 9 376527 497952 9,043 63047 385570 560,999
Unallocated liabilities AOEAE 473319 504726
Total liabilities 8% 858,889 1,155,725
Other segment EthAHER
information:
Depreciation and E R
amortisation 137571 76239 - - 13757 76239 1,143 8729 75500 84968
Surplus on revaluation  BERVERER
recognised directly LE[RRR
in equity 1477 = - -1 = - - =
Provision against Rk
inventories 4,236 1,802 - - 4,236 1,802 6,745 2399 10,981 4,201
Fair value losses on BRAFEA
equity at fair value BB
through profit or loss N
B 1,488 6,432 - - 1,488 6,432 - - 1,488 6,432
Provision for impairment ~~ EEHEE(E
of assets 60,697 - - 1325 60697 13256 5,098 - 65795 13,256
Capital expenditure EREX 19,508 80,246 - - 19,508 80,246 626 349 20134 83,665
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b)

Geographical segments

The following table presents revenue and

5. DEVEFR(#)
(b) ZHEHS
TREJFEEBEZ-_BTAFR

certain asset and expenditure information for —EENF=ZA=t—BLFER
the Group’s geographical segments for the WEEASHWARETEENMAX
years ended 31 March 2009 and 2008. Bk} o
Group NEE
Americas Europe Asia Pacific countries Others Consolidated
M B EABER it &4
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
“EENE ZERN\E CEENE ZEENE CEENE ZZEN\E CEENE ZER)\E CEENE 2R
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
AMTn BT A%Tn BETn B%Tn BBt BTR BT EETn BT
Segment revenue:  AHKA:
Sales to external HEFIR
customers zp 1447920 1,187,108 326538  6654% 548722 519,569 72823 48785 239,003 2420918
Attributable to a BRIHEERT
discontinued JElg
operation (32752) (39,009 (%,786)  (93,022) (171,362) (159,038)  (39,298) (9,003)  (340,198)  (300,072)
Revenue from RERERE
continuing operations Wiz 1415168 1148099 229752 572434 377360 360531 33,525 39,782 2,055,805 2,120,846
Other segment Hppipes:
information:
Segment assets AHEE
-Hong Kong —-BA 176,122 383,251
~ Mainland China ~HER 1,069,447 1334204
Total @t 1245569 1,717 475
Capital expenditure ERREY
-Hong Kong —-BA 7,257 8,508
- Mainland China —hER, 1281 75,157
Total @ 2,134 83,665

—ewaeEn moREEERARAT | O |
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6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. WA ~ g A R Ugzs
Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, WATMBAREREZ &5 - THi8H AT
represents the invoiced value of goods sold, net AEERARBHNEARRS%E @« KT
of discounts and returns, after eliminations of all MERENELEREREME -
significant intra-group transactions.
An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as WA~ A RIS T
follows:
2009 2008
—EBAE —ZEN\F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat BT T BETIT
Revenue LON
Manufacture and sale of ERA W R PTE
electronic products and RECE T
components attributable to JEAG 2 B
continuing operations HEBEFEMKR
reported in the consolidated =T
income statement 2,055,805 2,120,846
Manufacture and sale of home BRI E TSR 2
appliance products attributable RENRIHE
to a discontinued operation KEEREMm 13 340,198 300,072
2,396,003 2,420,918
Other income and gains H A A & Wz
Handling fee income FEERA - 250
Bank interest income RITHLEUA 174 1,504
Dividend income from listed RELEHEEZ
investments g S A 143 153
Foreign exchange differences, net  [& ¥ =858 9 1,219
Gain on disposal of items of HEWE - BE K
property, plant and equipment AT B Mk 43 29,886 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FRB ARz 36 - 1,922
Sales of scrap materials and SHERER R EM R
raw materials 7,287 -
Others Hi 193 571
37,692 5,619
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7. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 7. BRBADER(E8)
The Group's profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after RNEBMAOKRF NG, (EIB) Bk,
charging/(crediting):# (Gt A)T5I|&IE : #
2009 2008
—EThE ZZT)N\F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
Htat BT T BT T
Cost of inventories sold EETFERAE 2,405,318 2,224,861
Provision against inventories: TFEREE -
Continuing operations FESE XS 4,236 1,802
Discontinued operation BRI E A TS 6,745 2,399
10,981 4,201
Fair value (gains)/losses on TSR T EATE
derivative financial instruments (k) B
— forward currency contracts, net —REEBEKFE 26 (382) 3,325
Cost of sales HEMRAR 2,415,917 2,232,387
Depreciation E 15 66,813 73,333
Amortisation: BN
Software development costs* A N 17 75 75
Trademark* mBiE* 17 282 280
Recognition of prepaid land fERFEN L E
lease payments WIE 16 981 967
Research and development costs: 9% K R EE A AN
Deferred development costs IREF AR
amortised* By 17 8,330 11,280
Current year expenditure REERAL 2,115 4,789
10,445 16,069
Minimum lease payments TH RIEF AL 2
under operating leases S livichn
on land and buildings 3,771 4,401
Auditors’ remuneration ZEETN S 1,180 1,242
Employee benefits expense BIEAMAX
(including directors’ (BEEEME —A/779)
remuneration — note 9):
Wages and salaries TITERFGS® 160,378 166,140
Pension scheme contributions RIREET S 2,386 2,446
Less: Forfeited contributions** B R UR AR R+ - -
Net pension scheme contributions Rk & st 2|20 F5E 2,386 2,446
162,764 168,586
ZETNFFR RAOBEZERERLA 83
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7. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (continued) 7. BRBiADEA(E5E) ()
2009 2008
—EBAE —ZTT)N\F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Hfat BT T BT T
Provision for impairment of assets: &z R (AR
Continuing operations: FHEISE 275
Impairment of items of M - BE R
property, plant and & 18 B RE
equipment 15 37,409 -
Impairment of intangible assets B EERE 17 7,551 =
Impairment of account FE W BR FOR B
receivables 22 10,179 -
Impairment of deposits and &e RE MR
other receivables FIERE 24 5,558 =
Impairment of available-for-sale AHEE ZIRERE
investment - 13,256
60,697 13,256
Discontinued operation: BRI EAR T
Impairment of items of property, ME - R NRE
plant and equipment HBRE 15 5,098 -
65,795 13,256
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of — HE&EWE - MENZEEE
property, plant and equipment 2 (Wzs),/ E1a (29,886) 3,968

The amortisation of software development
costs and trademarks, and the amortisation of
deferred development costs for the year are
included in “Selling and distribution costs” and
“Cost of sales”, respectively, on the face of the
consolidated income statement.

* % * %

As at 31 March 2009, the Group had no
forfeited contributions available to offset its
future employers’ contributions (2008: Nil).

The disclosures presented in this note include
those amounts charged/credited in respect of
the discontinued operation.
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8.

FINANCE COSTS 8. BWEKA
2009 2008
—EEhE —TT)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEET T BEET T
Interest on: RTHIEESZ M 2FIE -
Bank loans and facilities wholly ARAEFAZHEED
repayable within five years RITERREE 25,361 35,518
Finance leases MEHRE 594 1,352
25,955 36,870
Attributable to a discontinued B4R IR TSRS
operation (note 13) (HiE13) 239 400
Attributable to continuing operations 44 IS K T 2 RISE KL
reported in the consolidated H¥TERE(L
income statement 25,716 36,470
25,955 36,870

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9.
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) and Section 161 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

EEFEHH

AEEEENHMREB I IES L
HANT ERRA D REBAREPIE 161

IEIEEELNT

2009 2008

—EEAF —TENF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BETIT

Fees we 1,801 2,001

Other emoluments: Hitf s :

Salaries, allowances and e R R

benefits in kind BEWEF 10,926 11,238

Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIHE R 455 560

11,381 11,798

13,182 13,799

“ETNFFR ROIBXRERERLAF
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31 March 2009
—FEENF=HA=+—H

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(@) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive

9. EEFM(#

(a) BAFHTESE
FAXNTEILGFATEEZ2HS

directors during the year were as follows: N
2009 2008
—EEAEFE ZZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Pang Hon Chung Tz 107 107
Cheng Tsang Wai o {2 106 106
Chung Hing Wah, Paul EEE 88 88
301 301

There were no other emoluments payable to
the independent non-executive directors during

the year (2008: Nil).

FRLEEMEN THBILIFNTE
EZME(ZTENF : E) -

(b) Executive directors (b) BITES
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
& 2K B
re ENER HEE B
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETT BETT BETR
2009 “ZZhE
Executive directors: HiTE%:
Ling Siu Man, Simon BRIV 300 4,505 194 4,999
Wong Ki Cheung HHE 300 1,794 97 2,191
Li Fung Ching, Catherine ZE S 300 1,794 97 2,191
Lam Kwai Wah M 300 1,650 12 1,962
Au Wai Man* EER* 300 1,183 55 1,538
1,500 10,926 455 12,881
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31 March 2009
—EFANF=A=+—H

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive directors (continued)

9. ESHM @

(b) HITEER(H)

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind  contributions  remuneration
e EMK RIRE
e EYEH ATEIfE R ekt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ST ok ok BRI
2008 —TT)\F
Executive directors: HITES:
Ling Siu Man, Simon EDN 300 3,588 194 4,082
Wong Ki Cheung HEE 300 1,644 97 2,041
Li Fung Ching, Catherine ZEE 300 1,644 97 2,041
Lam Kwai Wah M 300 1,500 12 1,812
Au Wai Man GBER 300 1,320 81 1,701
Liu Hoi Keung, Gary** B+ 200 1,542 79 1,821
Lee Ka Yue, Peter*** = e - - - -
1,700 11,238 560 13,498
Non-executive director: FRTEE :
Wong Wai Kwong, David***  gf& f*** - - - -
1,700 11,238 560 13,498
o resigned as a director on 1 January 2009 e RZZTNF—A—RAEEES

**  resigned as a director on 1 December 2007
***  resigned as a director on 3 August 2007

There was no arrangement under which
a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year (2008: Nil).

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

All five highest paid employees during the years
ended 31 March 2009 and 2008 were directors,
details of whose remuneration are set out in note 9

above.

“ETNFFR ROIBXRERERLAF

> RNZEBRLFE+-A-HREES
= R-RRLF/\A=AREIES

TR ZEFVEFLBELRE
BEEAMWEN L (ZTTNEF -

)

10. AluB S HESE

RBE-EEAER-FEAFZA
=St+-RALFE  FETUABHES
LAEE  EMRSHEFERR LX

B5E9 o
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—EENF=HA=+—H

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the
rate of 16.5% (2008: 17.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year. The lower Hong Kong profits tax rate is
effective from the year of assessment 2008/2009,
and so is applicable to the assessable profits arising
in Hong Kong for the whole year ended 31 March
2009. Taxes on profits assessable in Mainland China
have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in
Mainland China in which the Group operates, based
on existing legislation, interpretations and practices
in respect thereof.

Under the new PRC Corporate Income Tax Law
and its Implementation Rules (effective from 1
January 2008), the PRC corporate income tax rates
for domestic and foreign-invested enterprises are
unified at 25%. Certain subsidiaries of the Group
are entitled to preferential tax treatment with full tax
exemption from PRC corporate income tax (“CIT")
for two years, followed by 50% deduction in CIT
rate for the next three years. Certain subsidiaries
of the Group have not generated any accumulated
assessable profits since their establishments.
Pursuant to the new PRC Corporate Income Tax
Law, these companies are also entitled to full tax
exemption from CIT for two years commencing from
1 January 2008, followed by 50% reduction in CIT
rate for the next three years.

EBNEHBEIRAFEREBHRI
AT R B R A AT E16.5%(ZFF
N\ 1 17.5%)5TR - KABENBEFIE
REH-ZZEBN /BTN FEMEE
BEN  WEARBE—_ZTZTNF=A
=t+—HIEEFREBEEZERM S
F o JRFA R B A 2 R AR A as K B A T
IRIR AN 6 B A8 & RS PR TRt AP B A 2
WITER)  REREEERIZRE HE
AREHE o

BREB-_ZTNF-A—BEERZH
FEEEAEHAREERG - FE
A RINE X 2 EEABHRE
M—R25% - AEEETHEQBERS
MEEEFE AREBRHRLMETEH
CEMSHR(EEMSER]) AR
—FETRS0%EEMERE - XEH
& TP B 2 ) B B SZ DA 2R 0 8 E A ]
RETERBEN - REBEFFPBEEEMAE
BOE - WERRTFAIA_TENE—A
—BEAMFEEBHRREEMRFEHR
WHRBER=FERM0%EEMBHR

;;23 )

2009 2008
—EThE —TINF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Group: rER :
Current — Hong Kong EH &
Charge for the year rEEER 3,113 5,933
Overprovision in prior years B FE BRI (1,393) (158)
Current — Mainland China & H — A B A
Charge for the year rEEER 1,142 8,362
Deferred (note 32) EIE(H7aE32) (2,722) (622)
Tax charge for the year REENIAE R 140 13,515
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31 March 2009
—EFANF=A=+—H

11. TAX (continued) 11. BiIE (%)

A reconciliation of the tax applicable to profit/(loss)
before tax using the statutory rates for the countries
in which the Company, and its subsidiaries are
domiciled to the tax charge at the effective tax rate,
and a reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e., the
statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate, are as

RAARARENBARMERR X
EREEEANGHARN,(BR)
ZHEERERERREAEZIHEAE
Rz - ARERBRE(AAEREX)

BEEFRV R FEMT -

follows:
Group - 2009 rEB-—SSHhE
Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
B8 FR A 3t st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT BETT
Loss before tax (including MR RIEE (81
loss from a discontinued BRI EAE TS
operation) ZE1E) (51,895)  (122,543) (174,438)
Tax at the statutory tax rates ETEMERAE 218 (8,563) (30,636) (39,199)
Lower tax rates for specific BEEMEEH
provinces or enacted by HeRAEM 2 BUK
local authorities ME - 1,910 1,910
Effect of change in tax rate TR 2 (159) (147) (306)
Profit not subject to tax, E RSB R M B ER
due to concession 2 A (206) - (206)
Adjustments in respect of BT AR A AR I8
current tax of previous periods  {EH % (1,393) - (1,393)
Income not subject to tax BAERBUA (42) (25) (67)
Expenses not deductible for tax ~ ~A[ #0545 H 7,453 7,059 14,512
Tax losses not recognised REER 2 FiIAEE 4,142 19,644 23,786
Others Hit 649 763 1,412
Tax charge at the Group’s BRAEEERIHER
effective rate SHEZHIEER 1,881 (1,432) 449

“TTNFFR ROIBXERERLF
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—FEENF=HA=+—H

11. TAX (continued) 1. FIE (4%)
Group - 2008 rEE-—ZTENE
Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
B R A HEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FHET BT
Profit/(loss) before tax B RDER] (E548)
(including profit/(loss) from (IR R IR E XIS
a discontinued operation) 2R (EiE)) (9,218) 29,151 19,933
Tax at the statutory tax rates IAEMERE 218 (1,613) 7,288 5,675
Lower tax rates for specific BEEE M EE S
provinces or enacted by B BEF =
local authorities - (3,342) (3,342)
Profit not subject to tax, ARG R M B AR
due to concession vl (102) - (102)
Adjustments in respect of LB AR BN EAFR IR
current tax of previous periods  {EH 7% (158) - (158)
Income not subject to tax BRI A (1,212) (662) (1,874)
Expenses not deductible for tax ~ ASA[HNF ST H 6,254 119 6,373
Tax losses utilised from EFABAAE
previous periods FiiskEsia (1,029) = (1,029)
Tax losses not recognised KIERZ FiTE k18 1,108 6,787 7,895
Deferred tax not recognised, ] A5 75 48 28 T I A 2R
due to concession EER IR (240) 172 (68)
Others Hi 773 105 878
Tax charge at the Group's BEAEEERHEGTEZ
effective rate HIAE R 3,781 10,467 14,248
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11

12.

13.

. TAX (continued) 1. BIE(#)
2009 2008
—EBAFE —ZTTN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T PR T T
Represented by: HER :
Tax charge attributable to BRI A& SE TS PR
a discontinued operation (note 13) MIBER(ME13) 309 733
Tax credit attributable to continuing HAEWRRIAEFELS
operations reported in EBEGTIAERSE
the consolidated income statement 140 13,515
449 14,248

LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The consolidated loss attributable to equity holders
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2009
includes a loss of HK$597,000 (2008: HK$7,978,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements
of the Company (note 35(b)).

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 28 December 2008, the Group discontinued
its home appliances products division, which is
a separate business segment and is part of the
Mainland China and Hong Kong operations. The
Group has decided to cease its home appliances
products business because it plans to focus its
resources on electronic products and components
business.

“ETNFFR ROIBXRERERLAF

12.

13.

RNREERFE ARG FERR

AABERFAEABGEE_ZSTNF
=H=1f= EJLEEZA%\%%E@%,%
#597,000c 2 EBE(ZTEZENF : B
7,978,0007T) * ERAR R Z BRIk
BRI (FEE35(0)) ©

E ?@ﬂ: 2(« P %%ﬁz
AEBRZZEZENFF_AZFTNBK

IEEFREEREMDLT - ZEBFIRBL
EBoH  UATEAMEFTEERZ
—H#7n c ARAREFEREEREF

BHRETFTERREHERSE - BORER
IFEREEREMFER
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13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

13.

The results of home appliances products business for

the year are presented below:

BRI EEK (&)
REBREREBGNREE 2 LEHT
T -

2009 2008
—EENEF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BEET T
Revenue PN 340,198 300,072
Expenses Y (350,096) (291,753)
Impairment of items of property, e =YL
plant and equipment T8 BRE (5,098) -
Provision against inventories FERE (6,745) -
Finance costs BhE K 2N (239) (400)
Profit/(loss) before tax from BRI G =N
the discontinued operation wmA(E518) (21,980) 7,919
Tax I8 (309) (733)
Profit/(loss) for the year from BRI E TS 2 NFE
the discontinued operation A (E1R) (22,289) 7,186
The net cash outflows incurred by home appliances FEEREMFBHF 2R L FE
products business are as follows: AT
2009 2008
i 2y 3 —EENF
HK$'000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Operating activities KL TS 1,547 5,439
Investing activities & EE) 417 2,650
Financing activities BE RS 3,097 2,048
Net cash outflow BEmH FE 5,061 10,137
Earnings/(loss) per share: ESREF,(EE)
Basic, from the discontinued operation EZA @ REDKRIEKLEETE  (HK2.1 cents)  HKO.7 cent
Diluted, from the discontinued e A RIEREETR Bl oAl
operation N/A N/A
TEA iE A

92
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31 March 2009
—EFANF=A=+—H

13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss)
per share from the discontinued operation are based

13.

AR IEREER (&)
ERITEEEBR 2 BREAREER
(R DERAT&IESE

on:
2009 2008
—EENE —ZTTN\F
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary AAa|EBEmEa ARL
equity holders of the Company ERIERERE 2
from the discontinued operation swmAl/ (Et8) (HK$22,289,000) 7,186,000
Weighted average number of AREFZRUAESRER
ordinary shares in issue during B, (E18) 2B 8T
the year used in the basic I A% N 39
earnings/(loss) per share calculation 1,057,889,962 979,068,044

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share amounts from
the discontinued operation for the years ended 31
March 2009 and 2008 have not been disclosed, as
the options outstanding during these years had an
anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings/(loss) per
share for these years.

14. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share
amounts is based on the loss for the year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the Company of
HK$174,887,000 (2008: profit of HK$5,685,000)
and the weighted average number of 1,057,889,962
(2008: 979,068,044) ordinary shares in issue during
the year.

The calculation of basic loss per share amounts from
continuing operations is based on the loss for the
year from continuing operations of HK$152,598,000
(2008: HK$1,501,000) and the weighted average
number of 1,057,889,962 (2008: 979,068,044)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share amounts for the
years ended 31 March 2009 and 2008 have not
been disclosed, as the share options outstanding
during these years had an anti-dilutive effect on the
basic earnings/(loss) per share for these years.

“TTNFFR ROIBXERERLF

14.

HREZEZZEENEFER=_FZTNF=A
=t+—HIEFERARITENBRELTZ
EEENEREAZF (BE)ARE
SEBIER MU EFEBEERIECEEBR
ZEFREZBEREERAN(BE) -

al|
I§

RAEBREREREABRGER
&R/ (E8)

BREARNBFN (BEB) VERAFE
AR ERRAFR ARGERSE
174,887,000 L (ZZEZNF : i@ 778
¥5,685,00070) R ANF B B BT E R
DAEF 15 #01,057,889,962 i (—ZEE N\
4 1 979,068,0440% )5t & -

BEREEB 2 SRERBEBIVIZASF
[EFF B S & %75 2 F518/5 1 152,598,000
T (ZZFZE/)\FE : % ¥ 1,501,000
To) RN B BT E @ AR N T
20 1,057,889,962 i ( = T & )\ F
979,068,0440% )5t & -

HREE_ZTENFR=_FZTNF=H
=+ HIEFERRTENBRIESS
BEENERERBF,(BE)ERE
SEBIER MU ERBEZSFTE2SRE
SERA(EE) -
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—EENF=HA=+—H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. Y% - BMERRE

94

Group AEEH
Leasehold  Furiture
Construction  improve- and  Equipment Motor
Buildings  in progress ments fixtures  andtools  vehicles Moulds Total
g
BF HBIR  UEEE  FAREE RERIA k-] KA &5t
HKS000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
BT AN E¥Tn BETn BETn BEfn BMTn B¥Tn
31 March 2009 W-BEAEZA=1-R
At 31 March 2008 and RZBENEZA=T-R
at 1 April 2008; R=ZZN\EMA-R:
Cost or valuation A E 348,385 81,113 130,999 40,989 485,155 10270 169,209 1,272,780
Accumulated depreciation 2:HE (13,213) - (69,113)  (29.476)  (283,774) (8891)  (132229)  (536,696)
Net carrying amount KESE 335,172 81,113 61,886 11513 201,381 1379 36,980 736,084
At 1 April 2008, net of HR-EZN\EMA-H
accumulated depreciation BHRZ:E 335,172 81113 61,886 11513 201,381 1379 36980 736,084
Additions AE - 1,964 5404 1443 4,583 - 2913 16,267
Disposals HeE (2.300) - - - (825) (160) - (3,285)
Impairment? iR - - (451) (905)  (32,286) (13) (8852)  (42,507)
Surplus on revaluation Era 1177 - - - - - - 1171
Depreciation provided EpsriRE
during the year (14212) - (9.290) (2.281)  (25163) (360)  (15447)  (66,813)
Transfers g2 - (1.222) - - - - 122 -
Exchange realignment B 13,055 351 1814 " 1,763 16 - 20317
At 31 March 2009, net of W-EENEZA=T-R-
accumulated depreciation BHREERRE
and impairment 332,83 92,021 59,363 9,987 149,413 862 16,816 661,300
At 31 March 2009; REEENE=A=1-R:
Cost or valuation A GE 332,832 92,021 137,878 40,065 407,438 9,963 113954 1,134,157
Accumulated depreciation ZiMERAE
and impairment - - (18515)  (30,078)  (258,025) (9101)  (97.138)  (472.857)
Net carrying amount FHFE 332,832 92,021 59,363 9,987 149,413 862 16,816 661,300
Analysis of cost or valuation:  FRAZEER :
At cost RIAE - 92,021 137,878 40,065 407,438 9,963 113,954 801,325
At31 March 2009 valuation  R=EZhE
=R=t-Hefi@E 332,832 - - - - - - 332,832
332,832 92,021 137,878 40,065 407,438 9,963 113954 1,134,157
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31 March 2009
—EFANF=A=+—H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 1% - BMEKRKE &)
(continued)
Group R&EH

Leasehold Fumiture

Construction ~ improve- and  Equipment Motor
Buildings ~ in progress ments fixtures ~ and tools vehicles Moulds Total
HE

BF RERIR WRRE GARKE RRRIZ nE Ba it
HKS000  HKSOOD  HKS000  HKSOOD  HKS000  HKSOOD  HKS00  HKS000
BT AT RBTn TR RETn AMTn RETn RETR

31 March 2008 HNZZENEZA=1T-R
Atat 1 Aprl 2007; RZZFLEMA-R:

Cost or valuation A EE 270,790 106,034 111,191 31527 482,357 10,942 172,795 1,191,636

Accumulated depreciation ZitE - - (59,016) (26,446)  (256,945) (8379)  (136,600)  (487386)

Net carrying amount ERFE 270,790 106,034 52,175 11,081 25412 2,563 36,195 704,250
At 1 April 2007, net of RZZFLEMA-A:

accumulated depreciation BHRETE 270,790 106,034 52,175 11,081 225412 2,563 36,195 704,250
Additions RE - 35,286 14,402 2614 1,142 - 19,609 79,653
Disposals HE (286) (640) - ) (6316) (572) (930) (8,748)
Depreciation provided EfRs g

during the year (12,691) - (7,093) (2.490) (28,497) (648)  (21914) (73333)
Transfers g2 57253 (61,95) 15 43) 50 - 4,020 -
Exchange realignment S 20,106 8,388 2,387 355 2,990 36 - 34,262
At 31 March 2008, net of W-ZEN\E=A=1-R"

accumulated depreciation Bk Z:HE 335,172 87,773 61,986 1513 201381 1379 3980 736,084
At 31 March 2008; R-ZE\E=f=1-R:

Cost or valuation A BE 348 385 81173 130,999 40,989 485,155 10,270 169,209 1,272,780

Accumulated depreciation ZitE (13213) - (69,113) (29476)  (283,774) (8891)  (132229)  (536,6%)

Net carrying amount Efe 35172 81773 61,886 11,513 201,381 1379 36,980 736,084
Analyss of cost or valuation: HASHEA -

At cost AR 77,595 81113 130,999 40,989 485,155 10,270 169,209 1,001,990

At 31 March 2007 valuation RZERtE

ZA=T-RzfiE 210,790 - - - - - - 210,790

348,385 87,173 130999 40,989 485,155 10270 169.209 1,272,780
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96

#  During the year, the Group closed down
the operation of one of its factories located
in Qishi Town, Dongguan, PRC (the “Qishi
Factory”), which was principally engaged in the
manufacture of components for its electronic
products and components division, and home
appliance products division. The directors
considered certain items of the property,
plant and equipment of the Qishi Factory,
with carrying values of HK$42,507,000,
were impaired and impairment losses of
HK$42,507,000 were charged to the income
statement during the year.

The Group’s buildings were held under the following
lease terms:

At valuation — Held under R {HE— AR A
medium term leases HAOREE

The Group's buildings were revalued at 31
March 2009 by Sallmanns (Far East) Limited, an
independent firm of professionally qualified valuers,
on an open market basis at HK$332,832,000. A
revaluation surplus of HK$1,177,000, resulting from
the above valuations, have been credited to the asset
revaluation reserve.

Had the whole class of the Group’s buildings been
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation,
their carrying amounts would have been included
in the financial statements at approximately
HK$220,765,000 at 31 March 2009 (2008:
HK$221,715,000).

Included in the total amount of equipment and tools
at 31 March 2009 were assets held under finance
leases with a net book value of HK$21,475,000
(2008: HK$33,970,000).

As at 31 March 2009, the Group was in the process
of obtaining the building ownership certificates in
respect of certain factories of the Group located
in Mainland China with a carrying value of
HK$137,169,000 (2008: HK$135,235,156).

As detailed in note 37, deposits for the acquisition
of items of property, plant and equipment of
HK$2,346,000 (2008: HK$5,457,000) were utilised as
part of the considerations paid for the purchases of
items of property, plant and equipment during the
year.
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31 March 2009
—EFANF=A=+—H

15.

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

At 31 March 2009, certain of the Group’s
buildings with a net book value of approximately
HK$70,806,000 (2008: HK$44,520,000) were
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted
to the Group (note 30).

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

15. 1% - BMENRREE)

R-ZTZNF=A=+—H  AEBH
BRTHFEA)E170,806,0000( = E )\
F 1 44,520,000) 2 & TIEFERAEE
Z —IRITEE 2 EH M (FIEE30) ©

16. A L E R

Group

rEER
2009 2008
—EEAE —ZETN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Carrying amount at 1 April RUA—BZREE 44,250 45,159
Disposal & (2,445) (2,068)
Recognised during the year FNTER (981) (967)
Exchange realignment BE 5, 5% 1,176 2,126
Carrying amount at 31 March R=A=1+—HZEEE 42,000 44,250
Current portion mENEB S (909) (971)
Non-current portion IEmEE D 41,091 43,279

The Group’s leasehold lands were held under the
following lease terms:

AREBZBELTIIRATHORS ¢

Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
BE Bl At wat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ST BT BT IT
Held under medium term leases LA EBFR 4945 12,437 29,563 42,000

As at 31 March 2009, the Group has been applying
for land use right certificates in respect of certain
of the Group’s leasehold lands in Mainland China.
These leasehold lands had an aggregate net book
value of approximately HK$17,619,000 (2008:
HK$17,224,000).

Leasehold land of HK$11,945,000 (2008:
HK$16,632,000) is pledged for certain bank loans
as further detailed in note 30 to the financial
statements.

“TTNFFR ROIBXERERLF

R-TZZNF=A=+—H  KREE—
BERAETRABEA 2 HE L ES
HEFAEE c RS L ZEREFEAS L
4 578817,619,000C( — BT )\F : /B
#17,224,0007T) °

WNEF TS SRR 5303 — 5t 8 - AEH
1575 % 11,945,0007C (=2 Z )\ F : B
16,632,0007T) 2 & L {E A H TIRTT
BERZEAE -

97



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R M R

31 March 2009
—FEENF=HA=+—H

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

17. B EE

Group AEE
Software Deferred
development development
Trademarks costs Total
BE  EEEERA @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT

31 March 2009 —EEAFE=A=1—H
Cost at 1 April 2008, “ZT\ENA—RZRA

net of accumulated B2 H

amortisation 763 21,397 22,716
Additions INE - 3,867 3,867
Impairment? E (481) (7,070) (7,551)
Amortisation provided FRaHRZ

during the year ey (282) (8,330) (8,687)
At 31 March 2009 —EZAF=A=1—H - 9,864 10,345
At 31 March 2009: “EENF=A=1—H:

Cost [B%N 2,821 60,104 63,667

Accumulated amortisation  2:HE LA

and impairment (2,821) (50,240) (53,322)

Net carrying amount REFE - 9,864 10,345
31 March 2008 “EE\F=A=1—H
Cost at 1 April 2007, “EELFMA-BZKAE

net of accumulated EHBR25TH

amortisation 990 25,607 27,228
Additions NE 53 7,070 7,123
Amortisation provided FRFHEZ

during the year ey (280) (11,280) (11,635)
At 31 March 2008 —ZE)\F=A=1—H 763 21,397 22,716
At 31 March 2008: “TE)\FZA=1—8:

Cost [p%N 742 2,821 56,237 59,800

Accumulated amortisation REHE (186) (2,058) (34,840) (37,084)

Net carrying amount FEEE 556 763 21,397 22,716
#  During the year, the directors considered t ERNEBERAEAEEETEA

98

certain of the Group’s intangible assets,
including trademarks and certain deferred
development costs, with carrying amounts of
HK$7,551,000 were impaired as the Group
ceased to develop the related products during
the year. Impairment losses of HK$7,551,000
were charged in the income statement during
the year.
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8 575 % 7,551,0007T 2 BB E
(BEEERAE TELERERAN)
ERE ' FRANEBERFEARNZ
IFAZEBEER - REEESE
7,551,000t ERF R B W=z
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31 March 2009
—EFANF=A=+—H

18. GOODWILL

19.

As detailed in note 3.4 to the financial statements,
the Group applied the transitional provisions of
HKFRS 3 that permitted goodwill in respect of
business combinations which occurred prior to 2001,
to remain eliminated against consolidated retained
profits.

The amount of goodwill remaining in consolidated
retained profits, arising from the acquisition of a
subsidiary prior to 1 April 2001, was HK$2,000 as at
31 March 2009 (2008: HK$2,000).

18.

CL

AN B TS SRR M ES AFTREAL - AEEE
Ji& FB 2 7 B 75 =R A 2E I 55 355 AU 3B 115
X ZIEXBHFR T —FRINET
EHATELAREEERZRARE RN Y

RZZEBAF=A=+—0H —TBZT—
FYA— B2 AWKE—FEREB AR AT
EAEWHEBRLEARE R HAEE
HEERBE2,000(ZEENGF  BE
2,0007T) °

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19. R B AlfER
Company
ARAE]

2009 2008
—EERE ZEBEENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Unlisted shares, at cost IE LMD © KA E 58,812 58,812
Due from subsidiaries S EENEIVSEN 210,972 211,273
269,784 270,085
Impairment RIE (296) -
269,488 270,085

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and not repayable within one year from
the balance sheet dates. The carrying amounts of the
amounts due from subsidiaries approximate to their
fair values.

“TTNFFR ROIBXERERLF

B R BRRIEER - 2B RBAR
BEERAREZ—FAE & - MBRARAR
R REEEEAFERS -
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31 March 2009
—EENFE=A=1—F

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:

Name

Agility Investments
Limited

Dongguan Gold Beam

Electronics Co., Ltd.#

REERET
BRARS

Dongguan Tonic
Electronic Co., Ltd.#

RERNET
BRAR

Dongguan Xin Lian
Digital Technology
Co., Ltd.#

RESUIENE
BRARN

Gold Beam Developments

Limited
SRERARAF

Panatone Licensing
Limited

1 OO TONIC INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations

EAL/
BRERERLH

British
Virgin Islands
EBRAHES

People’s Republic of
China ("PRC")
hEARKME(THE])

PRC
PH

PRC
il

Hong Kong
BB

British
Virgin Islands

RERKES

HEAREENT :
Nominal value Percentage
of issued/ of equity
registered attributable
paid-up capital  to the Company
Direct Indirect
BR{T /R KARFE
BRBRAEE REBAL
B B
US$1 100 -
(E
HK$24,527,340 - 100
724,527 3407
HK$90,299,051 - 100
7%90,299,0517C
RMB56,730,488 - 100
AR#56,730,4887C
HK$2 100 -
BET
US$1 - 100
(EZ

Annual Report 2009

19. RTB A i (&)

Principal
activities

TEEHK

Investment
holding
REEKR

Manufacture of
electronic
components and
home appliance
products
HESTEHR
REEREM

Manufacture of
electronic
products
EETER

Manufacture of
electronic
products
BETTER

Trading and
manufacture
of electronic
components
BEERHEE TN

Holding of intellectual
property rights
RBRZER
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31 March 2009
—EFANF=A=+—H

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19. R B A Bt (&)

Place of Nominal value Percentage
incorporation/ of issued/ of equity
registration registered attributable Principal
Name and operations paid-up capital  to the Company activities
Direct Indirect
MR BRfT/ &R LNt
AH BUREXBY HEREEE REBDL TEXEH
E# B
Tonic Digital Hong Kong HK$100 = 100 Trading of
Products Limited* B BE1007T digital products
RNEBER ERgBEm
BRAR*
Tonic DVB British US$0.01 - 100 Trading of
Marketing Limited Virgin Islands/PRC 0.01T electronic products
EBRLEE/ EEETEm
i
Tonic Electronics British HK$1 100 - Investment holding
(B.V.1.) Limited Virgin Islands BT A R
RBRAEE
Tonic Electronics Hong Kong Ordinary - 100 Trading and
Limited &k HK$200 manufacture
BNEFERLAR Non-voting of electronic
deferred products
HK$300,000# RENBUE
LERAE2007T BFER
ERFRELTR
#%300,0007T#
Tonic Enterprises British US$1 - 100 Holding of intellectual
Limited Virgin Islands 1% property rights
EERIES HRNBER
Tonic International British HK$0.01 - 100 Provision of
Limited Virgin Islands/ B0.017T quality control
PRC services
EBRLEHE/ BRI PR
i
—TENEFFR

ROBXEZERARAF 101
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31 March 2009
—EENFE=A=1—F

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19. RTB A i (&)

Place of Nominal value Percentage
incorporation/ of issued/ of equity
registration registered attributable
Name and operations paid-up capital  to the Company
Direct Indirect
ERERL, BR{T/ R R
A" BRUREXLE BRRAEE REBDL
B B
Tonic International British US$1 = 100
Investment Limited Virgin Islands EF
RBRAEE
Tonic Investment British HK$0.01 - 100
(B.V.I.) Limited Virgin Islands BE0.017T
RBRAEE
Tonic Marketing British US$0.01 - 100
Limited Virgin Islands 001ET
RERAES
Tonic Technology PRC RMB15,400,000 - 100
(Shenzhen) Ltd.# H AK#15,400,0007T
RARR(RIN)
BRAR!
Tonic Technology Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 -
Limited & 10,0007
RABBRERRAF
Tonic Trading Hong Kong HK$100 = 100
Development Limited BE 1007
RNBHER
BRAA

1 OZ TONIC INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2009

Principal
activities

FEEHK

Investment
holding
REZR

Investment
holding
REER

Investment
holding
REER

Research and
development

and trading of
electronics products
Hx - e

REEETER

Investment holding,
manufacture

and trading of
electronic products
and components
REER  HER
EEETEMNEH

Trading of
electronic products
and components
EESTEmREH
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31 March 2009
—EFANF=A=+—H

Place of Nominal value Percentage
incorporation/ of issued/ of equity
registration registered attributable Principal
Name and operations paid-up capital  to the Company activities
Direct Indirect
B3l BR1T /G NG
D BRRER LA BRRAEE REBAL TEER
B A&
Tonic Venture Hong Kong HK$ 1,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Capital Limited BB 7571,000,0007C RERR
RABIERE
BRAR
TA Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Trading of home
BE #%10,0007T appliance products
EERESREM
SRR H PRC RMB500,000 = 100 Manufacture of
BRAR! H AR#500,0007T electronic components
HEETENH
Technotrend Trend Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Trading of
Limited** BB ##10,0007T electronic products
and components
BEEETERLEN
*  Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or *  WIEREZKRSHMER(FE)
other member firm of the Ernst & Young global KRB 2 itk B ARl
network. ¥ o
** The wholly owned subsidiary was incorporated R = W N == /NI B A Nl == = 1 5
in the current year. VA
#  Wholly-foreign-owned enterprises t HINBBENE
#  The non-voting deferred shares carrying the o EE B REEGERR D EA A
right to one-half of the profits after the holders oA A U B
of the ordinary shares have received a dividend 1,000,000,000,000 JT f% 2 1% &
of HK$1,000,000,000,000, have no right to ERTAA—LEA - BEERNBRE
vote at general meetings, and carry the right to NEeE L EREA A E T EE
receive one-half of the balance of any surplus A AW ER B & A 48 2 A B
in a return of capital in a winding-up after the 500,000,000,000,000 JT & Y& BY {F
holders of the ordinary shares have received a A EAH) — R EEEARDOIRA o
total return of HK$500,000,000,000,000. None REEKBATREEABMmIZE
of the non-voting deferred shares was held by 4 155 T8 R T AR5 o
members of the Group at the balance sheet
date.
ZETNFER 1 03
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31 March 2009
—FEENF=HA=+—H

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 20. JEHEZKRE
Group Company
KEE AT
2009 2008 2009 2008
—ETHhE —EENF ZEENE —ETNE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BETT BETT BETT
Unlisted equity investment, ELEHRARE
at cost B AE 24,366 24,366 24,366 24,366
Less: Provision for impairment W RERE (24,366) (24,366) (24,366) (24,366)

The above investment was designated as available-
for-sale financial asset and has no fixed maturity
date or coupon rate.

The unlisted available-for-sale equity investment is

EEERIIAAHLESREE - B

I B E R B R EAE

FE £ 70 AL 4 AR AR AR AN FOBR R

stated at cost less impairment. B
21. INVENTORIES 21. 78

Group

REE
2009 2008
—EENEF —EETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Raw materials = 223,563 250,328
Work in progress EES 85,662 175,810
Finished goods 2IRK T 44,607 100,697
353,832 526,835

1 04 TONIC INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2009
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31 March 2009
—EFANF=A=+—H

22. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

22. EWBRAI R i

Group

REE
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Accounts receivables FEUSBE FX 78,674 195,589
Bills receivables e ZE % - 12,135
78,674 207,724
Impairment B (10,179) -
68,495 207,724

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are
mainly on credit. The credit period is generally 30
days extending up to 90 days for major customers.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables in order to minimise credit
risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
senior management. In view of the aforementioned
and the fact that the Group's accounts and bills
receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk.

An aged analysis of the Group’s accounts and bills
receivables as at the balance sheet date, based on
the invoice date and net of provisions, is as follows:

AEBEXPZEGHREIEREETN
A - EEH-RR3I0B - TEXFFPHNE
EHRIRZ R0R - AEBHKEER
Yo 100 i W R TR A BR AR AE S - DURURAE
ERfk - ARREEFRRSEEEA
EEHER - ENAAFEEEAEELZ
EBRAR R RIES RAMAFER - B
NI EBREEE @R

AEEREERIREZHRRAREE
AEHNEREREREZERE DTN
T

Group
F5E
2009 2008
= Lk “TTNEF
HK$'000 Percentage HK$'000 Percentage
BT B BT Bk
0 to 30 days 0£30H 45,221 66 126,393 61
31 to 60 days 31£260H 7,948 12 32,993 16
61 to 90 days 61290H 11,192 16 16,950 8
Over 90 days 838904 4,134 6 31,388 5
68,495 100 207,724 100
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31 March 2009
—FEENF=HA=+—H

22. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(continued)
The Group’s accounts and bills receivables are
non-interest-bearing and their carrying amounts
approximate to their fair values.

The movements in provision for impairment of
accounts and bills receivables are as follows:

22. ENBRFI N EHE ()

AEBEZRURERNZERE B REK
EEEEQAFEMEE -

EURRR R RIB 2 BERBEBNT

2009 2008

—EEAF ZZEEN\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT T

At 1 April REA—H - =
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) B HERBIBEETE(H17E7) 10,179 -
At 31 March R=A=+—H 10,179 =

Included in the above provision is a provision
for individually impaired accounts receivables of
HK$10,179,000 (2008: Nil) with a gross amount of
HK$10,179,000 (2008: Nil). The individually impaired
accounts receivables relate to customers that were
in default of payment. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances.

An aged analysis of the Group’s accounts and bills
receivables that are not considered to be impaired is

B8 B FE St B B 2 R (E FE UK BR B IS
10,179,000 (=T NEFE : T)EHBRS
B A7B810,179,000L (T )N\F : T)
2 o (BRI B BB R U AR R L HE R X
ZEEEW - AEBVERLEEHIEE
EfE IR @ ek E A S B3R o

3 AR AR B RO AN R R U BR R R R R Y
BREc DT T

as follows:

Group

rEE
2009 2008
—ETAF BTN\ F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Neither past due nor impaired AR R R E 62,878 129,252
Less than 30 days #ER D H30H 2,321 35,693
30 to 90 days past due #HIS0H Z90H 2,494 42,779
Over 90 days past due #HAR B0 H 802 =
68,495 207,724
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31 March 2009
—EFANF=A=+—H

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based on
past experience, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that no provision for impairment is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over these balances.

At 31 March 2009, the Group factored
trade receivables of HK$53,394,000 (2008:
HK$118,451,000) to banks on a non-recourse basis
for cash. The Group continued to recognise the
factored accounts receivables in the consolidated
balance sheet because, in the opinion of the
directors, the Group still retained the risks and
rewards of ownership associated with the accounts
receivables and the financial assets derecognition
conditions as stipulated in HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement have not
been fulfilled. Accordingly, bank advances from the
factoring of the Group’s accounts receivables have
been accounted for as liabilities in the consolidated
balance sheet. As at 31 March 2009, these factoring
facilities were secured by a corporate guarantee
granted by the Company, cross-corporate guarantees
granted by certain subsidiaries and the Company.
The maturity date of the factored accounts
receivables range from 60 to 90 days. No impairment
is made on the factored accounts receivables.

—TTAEER

b 4 380 H SR (8 2 R MK o B A 4T I SR
BREBZREDIHEFBRA -

BHERREZEREREERAEER
BEROTHEEBZETELEFLEH -
REBBELR BANEEERAIEEX
HE) MEFERIDRERAT 28K
B MARBEETRLSBARU FER
EHREEE - AEBE L EF U FHEH
FRAEEAERREBEERT

R-ZZTZNAF=ZA=+—H  AEBEK
8 PR R G5 1553,394,000L (=&
=)\ : B#118,451,0007T) N E 5 JE
WRHRIBRRRARITEKIES - &
SEEBEN GG EEABRERELIR
NREER  REAZEZREAEEMN
REB ﬁ%%ﬁf%%mmﬂ 2 & Bl
AR AKRBERFE BB T ERIFE395% 2/
TA : #ERRFERTRN SR E EMR
R - At - $EIEW%HRE

mmﬁﬁ%ﬁ R EEARBRY
%Efo# ZNE=A=+—H"
&:ﬁﬁﬁﬁ% KA AE A
BR URETHBAREARTER
EH R EERERR - BUIRMRE
IR ZEIEABE N TF602=90H - HERLE
R RIBBRFRAIE L RUE o
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31 March 2009
—FEENF=HA=+—H

23. FACTORED ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES

23. BRRFARIEBERF (&)

(continued)
An aged analysis of the Group’s factored accounts AEBNEE AN RBRMNREERRZ
receivables as at the balance sheet date is as follows: BRESOATLOE ¢
Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EEhE ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BETIT
0 to 30 days 0£30H 23,493 40,172
31 to 60 days 31£260H 7,276 31,231
61 to 90 days 61%290H 12,993 36,728
Over 90 days H#BiE90H 9,632 10,320
53,394 118,451

An aged analysis of the Group’s accounts and bills

b 88 A5, A5 R 1B O 7 5 [ PR LKUAR 5 AR B

receivables that are not considered to be impaired is RZBRER DT
as follows:
Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EERE —ZTT)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETIT
Neither past due nor impaired A0 E N AR BE 43,763 90,176
Less than 30 days B F30H 6,995 28,275
30 to 90 days past due #HI30H E90H - =
Over 90 days past due # A E90 H 2,636 =
53,394 118,451

1 08 TONIC INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2009
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31 March 2009
—EFANF=A=+—H

24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

24. AR ~ BE R EARWRUE

Group

AEH
2009 2008
—EZThEF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BETIT
Prepayments AR RIE 13,843 18,396
Deposits and other receivables 24 K& H it pE Uk oE 8,133 2,946
21,976 21,342
Impairment BIE (5,558) =
16,418 21,342

The carrying amounts of the Group’s prepayments,
deposits and other receivables approximate to their
fair values.

The movements in provision for impairment of
deposits and other receivables are as follows:

AEBIBENFIE - BE REAMEWKIR
ZEEEEREEAFERE

Re &E M EYGRIE 2 R E R &S EHm
T~

2009 2008

—EEAFE ZEEN\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

At 1 April RIMA—H - =
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) B ERBUEE TR (H1:77) 5,558 -
At 31 March R=A=+—H 5,558 -

Included in the above provision is a provision for
individually impaired deposits and other receivables
of HK$5,558,000 (2008: Nil) with a gross amount of
HK$5,558,000 (2008: Nil). The individually impaired
other receivables relate to counterparties that were
in default of payment. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances.

Save as disclosed, none of the above assets is either
past due nor impaired and the financial assets
included in the above balances related to receivables
for which there was no recent history of default.

B EeRERERNERERS R EM
Ji& Y FX I8 75 #5 5,558,000 L (Z T ZEN
F . F)EH B SR A B 5,558,000
ZZETNF )2 EBE - @RI REAE
H UG FRIB B A B R GE B IR Z BT 4
HFEERM - AEETERLSEKTE
EEIE @ M EERTA -

BRETIEEE SN - B LB ER Bk
BE - MEidERedcemEERI
HAYY A R RO 8k 2 IRM IR G 7
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—FEENF=HA=+—H

25. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 25. MAFEFTABRZ ZRAEAKRE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EBAE —TTN\HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Listed equity investments in Hong Kong, & iR AKE
at fair value /NS 2,592 4,080
The above equity investments at 31 March 2009 and PR ZZFEENFEFRER=FEZTNEFE=H
2008 were classified as held for trading. The fair ST —BZRAREHDBERFHEE
values of the listed equity investments are based on E o FTRAKRE 2 AP EETSRE
quoted market prices. FTE o
The market value of the Group's equity investments REERQAFEFABR ZBRAEZEER
at fair value through profit or loss at the date ZEMB MR EB B 2 TEN B
of approval of these financial statements was 4,368,0007T °
approximately HK$4,368,000.
26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 26. (THEER TR
Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EThE ZTTN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Assets Liabilities
BE =L
Forward currency contracts RHIEB A4 382 (3,325)
The carrying amounts of the forward currency EHERSAOZREAERAE A TEME
contracts approximate to their fair values. H e
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31 March 2009
—EFANF=A=+—H

The Group has entered into various forward
currency contracts to manage its exchange rate
exposures which did not meet the criteria for hedge
accounting. Net gains of non-hedging currency
derivatives amounting to HK$0.4 million were
credited to the income statement during the year
(2008: net losses of HK$3.3 million were charged to
the income statement).

As at 31 March 2009, the Group had outstanding
forward currency contracts with an aggregate
notional amount of approximately HK$162
million (2008: HK$502 million) to hedge payables
denominated in United States dollars (“US$").

At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi
("RMB"”) amounted to HK$12,091,000 (2008:
HK$4,919,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default. The carrying amounts of the cash
and bank balances approximate to their fair values.

AEBEE VU ZHhRPEBEHNER
HWARGEE PSR MEZINERRE -
JEH R EESTA T A 2 RS FREBE
400,000 CERF AT AR BR(ZZEE
J\EE : EBFEE 3,300,000 2 A I
mRHR) °

N_BEZEAF=A=1+—80 K&£EH
Lt a4 & 78 #162,000,0007T (=
T )\ : B%502,000,0007T) Z K F
EREESNEREMNET([ZET])
FRIA o

NEEH  REBUARE((TAR
BMDABEZRERBTETABE
12,091,000 c (ZFEF )\ F : B
4,919,0007T) - ARETAIEEEBEA
Ha&E#  Am - BIBEHRBEABINEE
BERGEE SEERMNESERTE &~
EE R EEREEITINE E55 2 RITHE
ARBH B AH M ER o

RITRESBBEFRRITHERMERIVE
A ERFE - RITEF RN LT
i REHENRIFEERT - RERR
THRF  REEEE A FHERS -
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31 March 2009
—FEENF=HA=+—H

28. ACCOUNTS PAYABLES

28. FETERFX

An aged analysis of the Group’s accounts payables as

AEERGEERREZAHFENREN

at the balance sheet date, based on the invoice date, IR Z BRI DTN ¢
is as follows:
Group
REH
2009 2008
—EENF —TT)\F
HK$'000 Percentage HK$'000  Percentage
BETT Batt BT Ekaid
0 to 30 days 0%30H 123,488 36 230,043 46
31 to 60 days 31260H 24,509 7 66,951 13
61 to 90 days 61%290H 7,346 2 67,128 13
Over 90 days FE4H90H 186,679 55 143,734 28
342,022 100 507,856 100

The Group’s accounts payables are non-interest-
bearing and are normally settled within 30 to 120
days. The carrying amounts of the accounts payables
approximate to their fair values.

REBZEMERAERER—RN30E
120BALE - BNERRZERERER
FERE -

29. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER 29. EstEERHEMENFIE
PAYABLES
Group Company
KEE P N/NE]
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EERF ZZEN\E CZEEAF ZTT)\&F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AEFT BETT AEFT
Deferred income EIEWA 4,396 4,191 - =
Other payables HAth FE S RIB 10,418 6,179 9 9
Accruals FEsTE 28,734 42,773 - =
43,548 53,143 9 9

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an
average term of three months. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s and the Company’s other payables
approximate to their fair values.

HENARASRE R FHFHAS=M
A o REEKRARRHMEMNRIAZ K
EEEENFERE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A R MY RE

31 March 2009
—EFANF=A=+—H

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 30. RITFFEERREMEE
BORROWINGS
Group
bin-c)
Effective 2009 2008
interest —EThE “ETN\E
rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 HK$'000
EBEFE (%) 258 BETT BT
Current EnsA
Finance lease payables MEREENTIE 1.5 March 2010 6,681 8,234
(note 31) (Hiz#31) —T-TF=f
Bank overdrafts BITEX 5 On demand 10,615 4,299
- secured? —Fig A REX
Bank loans - secured? PITER-FEM 1.54-4.04 March 2010## 154,625 109,979
ZE-TE=A#
Bank loans - secured RITER -G 2.1 April 2010 -
April 2011# 7,500 -
“T-ZFEAZE
“E—FQAH
Trust receipt loans EEUEER 1.45-2.34 June 2009# 104,612 180,671
—“TENERA
284,033 303,183
Non-current FEENE
Finance lease payables A EREMNZIE = = - 6,891
(note 31) (Bit31)
Bank loans - secured RITEN—HER 4.04 April 2010 - 12,395 89,795
March 2013
“E-TEMAZE
—F-=%=f
Other loan - unsecured Eih & — i 5.76 Not repayable 48,749 -
within one year
HER—FRER
61,144 96,686
345,177 399,869

“ETNFFR ROIBXRERERLAF 1 13
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31 March 2009

—EENF=

##

114

H=+—H

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the
Group was in breach of certain covenant
requirements as set out in the bank facilities
letters for certain of its bank borrowings. These
bank borrowings included bank overdrafts,
trust receipt loans and secured bank loans
of HK$10,615,000, HK$79,611,000 and
HK$33,500,000, respectively, as at 31 March
2009. Due to the Group’s non-compliance of
the covenant requirements, all these banks
borrowings became due for repayment on
demand as at 31 March 2009. In addition, the
non-current portion of a secured bank loan
of HK$7,500,000 as at 31 March 2009, with
original maturity terms between April 2010 and
April 2011, was also classified as current as at
31 March 2009. Subsequent to the balance
sheet date on 16 July 2009 and 17 July 2009,
the Group was granted waivers from these
banks in relation to its non-compliance of
covenant requirements.

Due to the breach of covenants, these bank
borrowings, with maturity dates listed above,
became due for repayment on demand as at 31
March 2009.

Annual Report 2009
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REE_ZTThF=A=+—HL
FE  AEEEREETRITZR
TTRE KRB E THRARTE °
WERITEERER-_ZETNEF=
A=+—HB% 53 &%%10,615,000
JC ~ 8 ¥ 79,611,000 7T K& & &
33,500,000 T Z SR 1TEX * 57
IWEER R A EIBRITER - AR
AEERGEBETRAORTE - 1A
WERITEEER=-_ZZNF=A
=+—HEREREE - I R
ETNF=ZA=+—H " REHAE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B A R MY RE

31 March 2009
—EFANF=A=+—H

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 30. RITFFERERKREMEE (@)
BORROWINGS (continued)
Group
REEE
2009 2008
—EENE —EBEETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Analysed into: PaR)iv=IE
Bank loans repayable: AR T Y FHEER
RITER
Within one year or on demand —E NI EREEE 277,352 294,949
In the second year FF 4,023 38,508
In the third to fifth years, FoFEFRF
inclusive (BEEERS) 8,372 51,287
289,747 384,744
Finance lease payables: B S RN IR ¢
Within one year —E R 6,681 8,234
In the second year FE_F - 6,841
In the third to fifth years, FoFEFRF
inclusive (BIEEEMT) - 50
6,681 15,125
Other borrowings repayable: HinBEEEE
Beyond one year —Fi& 48,749 -
345,177 399,869
As at 31 March 2009, all the Group’s bank RZEBEZAF=ZA=+—H"  FIAXR

borrowings were secured by a corporate guarantee
granted by the Company, cross-corporate
guarantees granted by certain subsidiaries and
the Company, and mortgages over certain of the
Group's buildings and prepaid land lease premiums
which had an aggregate carrying value at 31 March
2009 of approximately HK$70,806,000 (2008:
HK$44,520,000) and HK$11,945,000 (2008:
HK$16,632,000) respectively. As disclosed in note
43(a) to the financial statements, under the terms of
the Group’s general banking facility, the chairman of
the Company, Mr. Ling Siu Man, Simon, being the
single largest shareholder, is required to maintain at
least 40% of the beneficial interests in shareholdings
in the Company.

EERTEEYNAARARFTREMHEE
BER - ETHBRAAIEARREEMHEME
TR EER  UEAEER_ZTZTh
FZA=1+—HEREABEDALEDSE
70,806,000 7T % /4 # 11,945,000 7T ( =
T\ F : B ¥ 44,520,000 T K &
16,632,0007T) 2 &/ TEF 2 B A KTE
N EREBIEEA - B % mEk
BisE43(a)FTiEEE - IRIBEAEE 2 — AR
TEEER  ARaERRE—ZAR
REDNSEEARARB 2 HRE SR
&D40% BB ©

“TTNFFR ROIBXERERLF 1 1 5



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS SRR M R

31 March 2009
—FEENF=HA=+—H

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 30.

31.

1 1 6 TONIC INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED

BORROWINGS (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group's interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings approximate to their fair
values. The fair values of interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings are estimated as the present values
of future cash flows, discounted at current market
interest rates for similar financial instruments.

FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

The Group leases certain of its plant and machinery
for its operations. These leases are classified as
finance leases and have remaining lease terms
of one year. At 31 March 2009, the total future
minimum lease payments under finance leases and

31.

RITTEERRHEMER @)
ARE 2 BITH B ER R EMEE 2
EEELATEEE - BT BERK
HtbE B2 AP EG AFRBLUSR
TAZEBMBHNEMRARKRASRZ
HifE -

MERERNFR

AEEEBESE ?H%&&% RIERTE
EZH ° EZ%TH%’JEH%@E&?HT =3
%EHHF% F-R-_FFENF=ZR=+—

%ﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬂfi\ﬁﬂi?}(rﬁfﬂi%@ &
&EEETEZZDT

their present values were as follows:

Present Present
value of value of
Minimum Minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
Group payments payments payments payments
BIK (N
rEH BEHES wEHE HERE HeHE
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EZAE ZZETN\F ZETRFE ZZTITN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT BETT BT
Amounts payable: AR TSIFHER
Within one year —FR 6,948 8,885 6,681 8,234
In the second year E_F - 7,050 - 6,841
In the third to FE=FEARF
fifth years, inclusive (DHEERE) - 51 - 50
Total minimum finance ~ BERERIE
lease payments e msE 6,948 15,986 6,681 15,125
Future finance charges AKRMEER (267) (861)
Total net finance lease BRERERMNZIE
payables R 6,681 15,125
Portion classified as HEARSBESD
current liabilities (B1:#30)
(note 30) (6,681) (8,234)
Non-current portion EREE D
(note 30) (Hizt30) - 6,891
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A R MY RE

31 March 2009
—EFANF=A=+—H

32. DEFERRED TAX 32. IEFERIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets FNELEHRBEENEENEIHOT :

during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities EEFEARE
Group XEE
2009
ZEEhE
Depreciation
allowance in
excess of Revaluation
related Development of
depreciation costs  properties Total
BHAEEITE
ZERE RN ERrYYES et

HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BRI BETT BRI

At 1 April 2008 RZZEZENFHA—H 19,143 2,360 33,806 55,309

Deferred tax credited S REF AUZER

to the income ZEIERIA
statement during (BizE11)
the year (note 11) (2,411) (865) - (3,276)

Deferred tax debited/  ERRE=R/
(credited) to equity (T A) ZIBEIEFE -
during the year:

Written back P E R ]
on disposal - - (190) (190)
Surplus on revaluation — EfL &% - - 274 274
Change in tax rate TR EE) - - (7) )]
Exchange differences [ X Z=%8 - - 1,373 1,373

Gross deferred tax NZEZNF=A
liabilities at =t+—HZEL
31 March 2009 FiIA B ER%E 16,732 1,495 35,256 53,483

—ETNFFR ROIBEEZRARAF 1 17



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS SRR M R

31 March 2009
—FEENF=HA=+—H

32. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 32. IREBLIE ()
Deferred tax assets BEEMIEEE
Group EH
2009
—EBENF
Losses available
for offset
against future
taxable profits Others Total
AT 35 8K
A&ERD
A 18 Hity HEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BET T BET T BETT
At 1 April 2008 RZZEZN\FMA—H - 863 863
Deferred tax charged to the FRPIIZHR
income statement ks 2 BIER IR
during the year (note 11)  (#f3£11) - (863) (863)
Gross deferred tax assets RZZEENEF=ZA=+—H
at 31 March 2009 BT E B - - -
Net deferred tax liabilities ~R-ZTEHAE=A=+—H
at 31 March 2009 ZIRIENA S B 53,483

1 1 8 TONIC INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2009



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B A R MY RE

31 March 2009
—EFANF=A=+—H

32. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 32 REBLIE (&)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHREAE
Group AEH
2008
—TTN\EF
Depreciation
allowance in
excess of Revaluation
related  Development of
depreciation costs properties Total
AT E
ZITERE AR EXRYyES f@Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T AT T BT
At 1 April 2007 RZZEZ+FNA—H 22,115 2,942 31,386 56,443
Deferred tax credited FREtABER
to the income ZERERIE
statement during (feE11)
the year (note 11) (2,972) (582) (7) (3,561)
Exchange differences BEHESR - - 2,421 2,427
Gross deferred tax RZZEZN\F=H
liabilities at =+—HBZEEHE
31 March 2008 BEEE 19,143 2,360 33,806 55,309

“ETNFFR ROIBXRERERLAF 1 19



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 75 S P =

31 March 2009
—EENFE=A=1—F

32. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 32. IEIERIIE (4)
Deferred tax assets EEFIEEE
Group REE

2008
—EEN\F

Losses available
for offset
against future
taxable profits Others Total
AT A 8
Ri&EaRDL
il l: )53 Hith et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT

At 1 April 2007 R-ZZZ+FMA—H 2,795 1,007 3,802

Deferred tax charged to the FRMIzR

income statement Mk 2 BT
during the year (note 1) (#f311) (2,795) (144) (2,939)

Gross deferred tax assets R-BEZENE=A=+—H
at 31 March 2008 ZIEEIEE L - 863 863

Net deferred tax liabilities HRZ-ZZEENE=HA=+—8

at 31 March 2008 ZIEERIR R EFER 54,446
The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong REEBRBEBEEZHEBENAS
of approximately HK$91,518,000 (2008: # 91,518,000 L (Z T )\ F . B
HK$47,031,000) that are available indefinitely, 47,031,0007T)  A]#ER BAAEEE - DA R
for offsetting against future taxable profits of the EEBBZ ARIRKERBUGN » K&
companies in which the losses arose. The Group B 5 R B (A 3, 7 2 A 8 665,009,000 7T
also has tax losses arising in Mainland China of (ZZZ)\F : #%10,636,0007T) #5H
HK$65,009,000 (2008: HK$10,636,000) that will —FERFIHZHIAREE - AEHAK
expire in one to five years for offsetting against RIERTRT - WEMZZEBEBRE
future taxable profit. Deferred tax assets have not EFHIBEE  WIHHRESRAEMNBA
been recognised in respect of these losses as the AN AI BB T 08 2 2R 2R FE AR A5t v ) 349 8
directors consider not probable that the subsidiaries ZEEE o

will have sufficient future taxable profits against
which those losses can be utilised.
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31 March 2009
—EFANF=A=+—H

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared
to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between China and jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%
or 10%. The Group is therefore liable to withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 March 2009, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings of the Group's
subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the
opinion of the directors, it is not probable that
these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in
the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred
tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled
approximately HK$457,000 at 31 March 2009 (2008:
Nil).

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

RIBREPEMSHE - RPBIERK
S RN IR E B ERINE R E E TR
BAKRI0%HBTENT - WREH_-F
ENF—A—HEREW WEAR_-Z
T+F+_A=+—HEHAEF o s
Bl ERHNER 4% 2 WY R ARE R R] B B 1
% AN ERAREMNEINRE - giAsE
EmE @ @AMNER5%10% ° AL -
AEBBEEERARRRAME T NZE
WBARR-_EZENF—F—HBRELE
9 2 F P 0 B B B 8 A FE A0 ER ©

R-ZBEZNF=A=+—H  TERNKN
B B A A S 2 KT B A B R E
BHERN 2 BHRERELETRIE - £5
REBZEMNB R TARENAIER X
ROKREF - R=_ZZNF=ZA=+—
H ANEBEWEERRFEAHHEA
AREFR EREB 2 ENELERIE
BELHBEEA57,000L (T N\ F
fm) o

ARRABRN FRE RS EFRER
@,
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B RS R aR M aE

31 March 2009
—FEENF=HA=+—H

33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. I®RZA
Company
¥ N
2009 2008
—EEhE —EENF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BEET T
Authorised: JETE
3,000,000,000 (2008: 3,000,000,0000%
1,200,000,000) ordinary (ZEE)NF:
shares of HK$0.10 each 1,200,000,0000% )
SR EESE0.107T
7 A% 300,000 120,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRHT
1,057,889,962 (2008: 1,057,889,962 1%
1,057,889,962) ordinary (ZEENF :
shares of HK$0.10 each 1,057,889,9620%)
SR EES®0.107T
OB 105,789 105,789

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are
included in note 34 to the financial statements.

A summary of the transactions during the year in the
Company's issued share capital is as follows:

B

FE34 -

AR )RR R AT B FE 1B BN B 7 3R AR B

ARABBETRAREARNZR S E N
-

Number Issued Share
of shares share premium
in issue capital account Total
BT
BROEHE ERTRE ROBER #et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BB BT
At 1 April 2007 RZZZT 952,889,962 95,289 59,098 154,387
Issue of shares (note) BTG (B 5E) 105,000,000 10,500 12,390 22,890
Share issue expenses (note) A9 31T H (A7) - - (100) (100)
At 31 March 2008, NZBENE
1 April 2008 and =A=+—8"
31 March 2009 —EENF
MA—BE
—ETNF
=A=+—H 1,057,889,962 105,789 71,388 177,177
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31 March 2009
—EFANF=A=+—H

Share options (continued)

Note: On 13 November 2007, the Company
entered into a share subscription agreement
with CorporActive Fund Limited, a third
party company, for the subscription of
105,000,000 new ordinary shares of the
Company of HK$0.10 each at the price of
HK$0.218 per share. 105,000,000 shares of
HK$0.10 each of the Company were issued
and cash proceeds of HK$22,890,000, net of
share issue expenses of HK$100,000, were
received by the Company.

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
"Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants of the Option Scheme include
the Company’s executive directors or employees of
the Group. The Option Scheme became effective
upon the listing of the Company’s shares on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 16 October 1997 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force
for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Option
Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise,
to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. No option may be granted to any employee
which, if exercised in full, would result in the total
number of shares already issued and issuable to him/
her under the Option Scheme exceeding 25% of the
maximum aggregate number of shares subject to the
Option Scheme at the time it is proposed to grant
the relevant option to such employee.

The exercise price of the share options is determined
by the directors and is equal to the higher of: (i) the
nominal value of the shares; and (ii) a price which
is not less than 85% of the average closing price of
the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of
grant of such options.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

—TTAEER

B ARE(E)

Hiit - R—ZEE+F+—A+=H &
A A B8 — % % = J5 CorporActive
Fund Limitedz] S AR 17D R & 172 -
NREBESRER0218TTREAR
A &) 105,000,000 f% & A% = & 5
¥&0. 10T AU FT 3B AR o ANAF]
2 % 17 105,000,000 f% & I & &
BE0N0TTHIRR  AAFE W
EUIR & FT{S 30085 122,890,000
T(HBRBEHBETI R AR
100,0007T) °

ARBRAE BB S (B RE
gll)  BHERAZEFHAKEEBKLE
FIERE G ERSEA TR RE K 52
B BREAIHSERZEALBER
RAPITEFHAKERE - BAER
ERARABEOHR—ANEFT A+
REBREBAXZMERRA ([
FTl) EERAERR o BRIEBUBSIEETIN -
ZEr KB L BN - /H0
£ o

RIBRE MR 8B AT A TR A RTT
ERERESE LR - AERNEREREE
TR A QR AMEM B A 2 BT &
10% ° fAEAIEE R LERE M2
T 17 62 A R 3 AR A 5 8 BRI B BRRE =
EEBRTRARTTZREREENRDA
2 BAEREEHARBRETZEA
1B B 2 BR8P K A in AR B
R25% @ AN FGRAZAEEREER
1 -

BRETEERESETE - HFN TS
BeE  (WVROHEE: Ri)MERAR
ARNAERRREEEBREE BpA
22 2 B 2B S A 9 SF 49 e T {E 85 % Y
B -

BEEYTETHAEAZTEREXHAR
BRAGRRZIEN -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R aR M aE

31 March 2009
—FEENF=HA=+—H

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Option Scheme at any time from the
date of acceptance of the option by an employee
or such later date as may be fixed by the directors,
to any date prior to the 10th anniversary of such
date, provided that the employee can only exercise
a maximum of 20% of the options granted to
him/her in each 12-month period following the
commencement of the relevant option period. The
consideration to be paid by the employee upon
acceptance of a grant of options is HK$1.00.

With effect from 1 September 2001, the Stock
Exchange requires that the exercise price of options is
at least the higher of the closing prices of the shares
on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant and the
average of the closing prices of the shares on the
Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant. Up to the date of this
report, the Company has not granted any option on
or after 1 September 2001.

The following share options were outstanding under
the Share Option Scheme during the year:

34. BRAESTE(®)

EHEEVEENBEREZARES
BRI ENEZASEEZAHET5/E
WE B IEEIR c BERF IR BR R AR AT B0
RRITEERERRAE - W ERIEE T HAE
% BA e A 15 12 =81 28 A ARG AT 47
FRZEREREREN20% - EEE
BB ERERAZNNRERSSD
#1.007T °

B-ZT-FAA—HAE BIMRE
BRESETEEASTIREE « K
X B B FE B 32 P 69 M T 1B BB )
EEERH BRI RER S A EBRZHR
RN HE - BEARERH - AR
AN-EE-—FNA-BHZRLER
HETRERAE

R - BRI E BT R 1T B L0 AR
T

2008
—EZRE —TTN\F

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price of options
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000

per share per share
ik B B il B R
TEE 4] 111808 20H
BRAEY T4 BB T
At 1 April RYA—H 0.467 56,820 0.467 65,175
Lapsed during the year ~ RERLR 0.467 (9,690) 0.467 (8,355)
At 31 March R=A=+—H 0.467 47,130 0.467 56,820
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B A R MY RE

31 March 2009
—EFANF=A=+—H

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share
options outstanding as at the balance sheet date are

34. B FERTE(&#)

REER @ MARTTEEREZITEER
ITEEAOT ¢

Exercise period
1THEHA

10/04/2000 - 09/04/2010
—EZTHEWMATHEE
—F-THENMANAE

as follows:
2009
ZEEBAEF
Number of options Exercise price*
BRERE TEE>
‘000 HK$ per share
TR BREE
47,130 0.467
2008
—ZEENF
Number of options Exercise price*
BlREHAE 1IfEE*
‘000 HK$ per share
T Gl
56,820 0.467

*  The exercise price of the share options is subject
to adjustment in case of rights or bonus issues,
or other similar changes in the Company’s share
capital.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had
47,130,000 share options outstanding under
the Option Scheme. The exercise in full of the
remaining share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result
in the issue of 47,130,000 additional ordinary
shares of the Company and additional share
capital of HK$4,713,000 and share premium of
HK$17,297,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 47,130,000 share options
outstanding under the Option Scheme, which
represented approximately 4.5% of the Company's
shares in issue as at that date.

Exercise period

1T

10/04/2000 — 09/04/2010
“EETFNPA+HE
—ET-FTFEANH

BRI T B R IR B4
AR - AR ABAERLIED
fE -

NMEE R ARRIRIBEREEEE
47,130,00019 M AR TTIERE R < AR
AIIRARARENS @ 2EITEHRTE
A& #E & B BUAR A ) B 1T EE/NA7,130,000
A% @A AR D - WS B BUEINE A B
4,713,0007T X A& 5@ B &% 17,297,000
TCOCREFEETRIS) ©

RZEMEHRRMERBT - ARFRIE
BE IR RERT 21 25 47,130,00017 & R TT1E
B - AR RIRZEBZEETR
BHI4.5% °
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31 March 2009
—EENFE=A=1—F

35. RESERVES

(a)

(b)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and
the movements therein for the current and
prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the financial
statements.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents
the difference between the nominal value
of the share capital of the former holding
company of the Group acquired pursuant to the
Group reorganisation to rationalise the Group
structure in preparation for the listing of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange, over
the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange therefor.

35. @1
(a) =&H

AEERANFENBEFEZHE
REBEPHEBERNVBHRRZEGE
BamEEHR2T -

AEENBABRBEAEBRER
ARE IR R AT LT EEAR
SERBAETHNSEEEAENKE
RN LT @/ @ N =R
N2 B Fh L AR T B AT AR BB
HER °

Company (b) &2 F]
Share
premium  Contributed Retained
account surplus profits Total
R EER N REEF EH

Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

st BT BT BT BT
At 1 April 2007 “ETE+ENA—H 59,098 58,794 42,221 160,113
Issue of shares EIRG 33 12,390 - - 12,390
Share issue expenses  {pE1T32 33 (100) = = (100)
Loss for the year AEEER - - (7,978) (7,978)
At31 March 2008and —ZTN\F=A=+—H

at 1 April 2008 kZZE\EMA—H 71,388 58,794 34,243 164,425

Loss for the year NEEEE = = (597) (597)
At31March2009  ZEZHhE=A=+—H 71,388 58,794 33,646 163,828
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35. RESERVES (continued)
(b) Company (continued)

35. f#fE @)
(b) EAT(4E)

The Company’s contributed surplus represents
the excess of the fair value of the shares of
the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
reorganisation referred to in note 35(a) to the
financial statements, over the nominal value
of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
therefore.

Under the Companies Law (2002 Revision) of
the Cayman Islands, the share premium account
of the Company is available for distribution
to shareholders, subject to the provisions of
the Company’s memorandum or articles of
association and provided that immediately
following the distribution of dividends, the
Company is able to pay its debts as and when
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
In the opinion of the directors, the Company'’s
reserves available for distribution represent the
share premium account, contributed surplus
and retained profits.

RRBHBABRBRIEREBEUBHRRE
B 5E35(a) P it 5 48 AT UK AB Y /BB 2 )
2B RFE - BEARBRIER
BmBRITRDEENEE -

BEFRSHEAREA(ZZET_FE
FTAN) » BRI B4R AR E5RE A 4 K 41
BISBEREEN AR R AR
mBRAESRTIRE &AL
ANRIERBHERER B AIEEH
EHBEBTEPNEE - E2R
5 AR R AR R B B AR D
BB - BABBRRBET -
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36. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 28 November 2007, the Group entered into a
disposal agreement to dispose of its entire interest in
Tonic Appliances Limited (“TAL"), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group to a third party company,
for a cash consideration of HK$5.6 million. The
transaction was completed on 21 December 2007.

36 HEMEBAQT
R-BZT+F+—HA=-+N\B ~x&H
SIVHEWSE I RE=ZSAFHE
ERAEE —HE2EMNBATRNRA
BERBBRARN(RARAERE]) 225
% - BEREAEEES,600,0007T ° R
SR_EZtF+_A=-+—HZEK °

HK$'000
BT T
Net assets disposed of: HEEESE :
Accounts and bills receivables FEWER R R =45 2,424
Prepayments, deposits and TARRIE - 1'E REA
other receivables FEWIFRIE 2,569
Cash and bank balances Re MRITHER 1,085
Accounts payables FETBR IR 9)
Accrued liabilities and other payables FEET BB R E A R RRIE (1,967)
Interest-bearing bank and RITFFEER K
other borrowings Hihfg & (414)
3,688
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 6) HE—XMBRA R ZWE=H (Hite6) 1,922
5,610
Satisfied by: NFAR :
Cash Re 5,610

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is

FELE—ZNMBRARANEERERR
SHEBRAFEINFAT

as follows:
Cash consideration HWERE 5,610
Cash and bank balances disposed of HERE MRITETT (1,085)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents RHE—ZFRMBRARZRERER

in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary & TEH AR AERE 4,525
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37. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH 37. REREMEBRMETE
FLOW STATEMENT
Major non-cash transactions FEFBRERS
During the year, deposits for the acquisition of items FNBEEWME - BEAKEEBE IR
of property, plant and equipment of HK$2,346,000 &5 #52,346,000T( —ZZ )\ F : B
(2008: HK$5,457,000) were utilised as part of the 5,457,0007T) ERERBENE - BE &
considerations paid for the purchases of items of RBEHEBENHRE -

property, plant and equipment.

38. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 38. WHEE
Details of the Group’s bank loans which are secured NAREEEEFBERNAEBRITER
by the assets of the Group are included in note 30 to FHIEE N BEHRMFE30 -

the financial statements.

39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 39. IREE
At the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities not REEH » KRR IRER P EHRA A
provided for in the financial statements were as afEmT
follows:
Group Company
FEE NN
2009 2008 2009 2008
ZEEAFE ZETN\E ZBEAFE EIN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT BETR BT

Guarantees for general ~ AffE A
banking facilities of ) —RRERTT

subsidiaries* FERMER - - 785,206 1,388,027

Shipping guarantees B (R 2,523 1,643 - _

2,523 1,643 785,206 1,388,027

* At 31 March 2009, HK$349,822,000 (2008: HK$518,320,000) * R-ZZTHAE=A=+—H " WBLAGEH

of the general banking facilities were utilised by the B —RIBITIEE A8 %349,822,0007t (=
subsidiaries. T )\F : #¥518,320,0007T) °
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40. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

(b)

The Group leases certain of its buildings under
operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for a term of 10 years.

At 31 March 2009, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants

 REHEERH

(a)

AEEREKEHELHHEEST
BT KRERZHEBSI10F -

R-ZFBFNF=ZA=1+—B &%
ERBEEEEFFIZ 2 TR HEL
S E R T 51| BAfE 2 HA e U 2 R 2R

falling due as follows: SEHSHEFERAT ¢
Group
rEE
2009 2008
—EBAE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Within one year —FRN 1,076 1,076
In the second to fifth years, E_ZFERF
inclusive (BREEREMSE) 4,304 4,304
After five years RFER 1,435 2,511
6,815 7,891
The Group leases certain of its properties (b) AEERBLCEHETHBEERLS

under operating lease arrangements. Leases
for properties are negotiated for terms ranging
from one to four years.

At 31 March 2009, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

Tz - MERONZETFHN T
_iﬂi °

R-ZFBFNF=ZA=1+—B &%
BaETAREEEENTER T
HR O ARRRERSERS

Group
REE
2009 2008
—EENEF —ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BETIT
Within one year —F RN 473 3,786
In the second to fifth years, E_EZFERF
inclusive (BIEEEMT) 128 7,322
601 11,108

At the balance sheet date, the Company had
no operating lease arrangements (2008: Nil).
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In addition to the operating lease commitments
detailed in note 40 above, the Group had the
following capital commitments at the balance sheet
date:

Contracted, but not provided DEI#EREHEZ
for equipment and tools HERTA

At the balance sheet date, the Company did not
have any significant commitment (2008: Nil).

On 11 November 2008, Thomson Hong Kong
Holdings Limited (“Plaintiff”), a former customer
of the Company, filed a writ of summons with the
High Court of Hong Kong against the Company
and two of its indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries
namely, Tonic Digital Products Limited (“TDPL")
and Tonic Electronics Limited (collectively known as
the “Defendants”), in respect of disputes relating
to returned goods. The Plaintiff claimed for a
refund and damages in the sum of US$4.3 million
(approximately HK$33 million) together with interest.

On 31 December 2008, a counterclaim was
submitted by the Group against the Plaintiff the
sum of US$0.3 million (approximately HK$2.5
million) being default to pay and settle goods sold
and supplied by the Group (the “Counterclaim”).
The Plaintiff filed its reply and defence to the
Counterclaim on 17 March 2009.

As at the date of approval of these financial
statements, the parties are to attend to resolve
interlocutory matters before the case is to be fixed.
In the opinion of the directors, the case was still in its
preliminary stage and it was premature to speculate
the outcome of such claims. Therefore, no provision
was made as at 31 March 2009.

% b STRTSEA0FR 5% 48 AR B A1
AR R A0 B B A FEARIE -

Group

A eEE
2009 2008
—EEhAE ZZTTENF
HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT

53 590
REEH KRB WET A EARFRE(Z
TT)\F &) o

R=ZEENF+—A+—8  A&EEH
BEESHEBAERARREANEBE
EEEARRA BREERNFEN
ARREEMREEEZEWB A AR
BIEERARAR([RAOEE]) REN
BETHRAR(ABIHEADERER
2k o R AEBF A 204,300,000 T
(#97%#33,000,0007T) Z B AR KRB EE
BF 8 o

N_BEBENFE+-_A=+—0 x&£H
MRSARELEI N RENSAERS H
KRt 2 & MR8 A 2300,000E T (4
75 ¥ 2,500,0007T) MR RRE ([ RER
Bl -BEAER-_ZZNF=A++
BRERERMERRREZNHE -

REFWHRR]ILERH - EFRAL
HEARFHEMNEFTERFLES
H -BERR RHENDERVIZEER
HRBARBERERDEBE - Bt &

RZZBZNF=A=+—HELES -
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 43. BEATRZIRNEERS

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed MBS R E Mo TE R 5 M & &
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group Oh - REBRAFERBEFEER T
had the following related party and connected FEANLTNAEBERS :

transactions during the current and prior years:

(a) Under the terms of the Group’s general banking (a) WEANEEZ —RIBITEEKRR
facility, the chairman of the Company, Mr. ARABEFERE—ZARRZE DX
Ling Siu Man, Simon, being the single largest FHEARAR B RIEAEF D 40%
shareholder, is required to maintain at least BB RERS ©

40% of the beneficial interests in shareholdings
in the Company.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b) REEFEEEABZHE :

of the Group:

2009 2008

—EENE —EENF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Short term employee benefits REE BB 12,727 13,239

Post-employment benefits BREL 12 42 A 455 560
Total compensation paid to key ENEEERAR

management personnel fEsEsE 13,182 13,799

Further details of directors’ emoluments are B v SHESNUER

included in note 9 to the financial statements. E LR
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(c) On 16 June 2008, the Group entered into (0 R-ZEZFNFEA+B ~&H

a conditional sale and purchase agreement
with the spouse and daughter of Mr. Ling
Siu Man, Simon, a director of the Company,
(“Purchasers”), for the disposal of a director
quarter, which is currently occupied by Mr. Ling
for his residential purpose, at cash consideration
of HK$34 million. Since the Purchasers are
close family members of Mr. Ling and the
consideration is greater than HK$10 million,
the proposed disposal transaction constituted
a non-exempted connected transaction for the
Group. The above transaction was disclosed in
the announcement of the Group dated 16 June
2008 and was approved by the independent
shareholders at the extraordinary general
meeting on 28 July 2008 pursuant to the
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The above transaction was completed 29 July
2008 and a gain of approximately HK$29
million arising from the disposal of a director
quarter was recorded by the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2009.

—TTAEER

BANRERTEINEEZRER
ZR([ER DAL EBKREEE R

+ AR @ (B 7 % 34,000,000
Etﬂ’ifﬁlhﬁﬂ/’“ X AEEFTE R
BERERAZESES -BHRELA
EREZHE  AREBEBE
10,000,000 ' MEHTHER HE
FRANEE Z IERERIER S o il
RBERANEBHHAE -—ZTZ)\F
NATRBZAMGEE  WiEE
MRABUAZEZ REEB IR
R-ZTZN\FLtA -+ /\BHERER
FERIR S RO o

A RGER_ZEZENFE LA
“tABRRER AEEREE-Z
SNFEZA=Z+—RHIEFEALHE
EEE SRS 48 %29,000,0007T
2 Uazs o
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY

44, BRI E D 2T A

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

REER  SREFIEDZ2ERMTAZ

financial instruments as at the balance sheet date BREELT :
are as follows:
Group - 2009 AEE-—ZZTIEF
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets
at fair value Available-
through profit for-sale
or loss - held Loans and financial
for trading receivables assets Total
BAYE
TABRZ
SREE- Rk THEEZ
HEEE P E SREE @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Available-for-sale investment ez RE - - - -
Accounts and bills receivables UG RER - 68,495 - 68,495
Factored accounts receivables ERRTRIERS - 53,394 - 53,394
Financial assets included in INEINEREE
prepayments deposits and Ze REMEY
other receivables FEARZ
CHEE - 8,133 - 8,133
Equity investments at fair value BATE RS
through profit or loss ZIRAERE 2,592 - - 2,592
Derivative financial instruments fTELRTEA 382 - - 382
Cash and bank balances He RBTER - 36,758 - 36,758
2,974 166,780 - 169,754
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (continued)

44, mBERE D 2T A (&

Group - 2009 AEE-—ZEZNE
Financial liabilities SHEE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
12 8 65 PR AR
FTEZ
SREE
HK$'000
BT T
Accounts payables FEfTBR IR 342,022
Financial liabilities included in REFTEER
accrued liabilities and other payables HEEMNREARZEREE 10,418
Interest-bearing bank and RITFEEH K
other borrowings HitbgE 345,177
Bank advances on factored FEWRISTRIBER SR 2
accounts receivables RITER 53,394
751,011
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (continued)
Group - 2008

44, BRI E D 2R T B ()

AEE-—FENE

Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets
at fair value Available-
through profit for-sale
or loss - held Loans and financial
for trading receivables assets Total
N ]
FABRZ
SRIEE- BNk AfHE s
HEER EWFIR SREE FEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BETT
Available-for-sale investment AfREEZRE - - - -
Non-current portion of HipElzE s
an other receivable ERess - 2,470 - 2,470
Accounts and bills receivables G ES - 207,724 - 207,724
Factored accounts receivables FEUWREREBERZR - 118,451 - 118,451
Current portion of loans receivable EUWEZZ REED = 93 = 93
Financial assets included in RIEf
prepayments, deposits and TR ZER
other receivables HMBEWHBAR &BEE - 2,946 - 2,946
Equity investments at fair value BATEF AR
through profit or loss RS 4,080 - - 4,080
Cash and bank balances RELRTER - 31,031 - 31,031
4,080 362,715 - 366,795
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (continued)
Group - 2008

Financial liabilities

44,

RENES M I E(#

rEE-—FBN\F

SRIEE
Financial
liabilities at fair
value through Financial
profit or loss — liabilities at
held for amortised
trading cost Total
BATE
ATABEZ R
tRafE-  KAHEZ
HEEE TRARE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT

Accounts payables
Financial liabilities included in
accrued liabilities and other payables
Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings
Bank advances on factored accounts
receivables
Derivative financial instruments

FERBRRN = 507,856 507,856
RIERT B EREAM

ERFEARZERAE - 6,179 6,179
FITETBERK

HibfE & - 399,869 399,869
YRR REBERER 2

RITER - 118,451 118,451
fTEEBMTA 3,325 = 3,325

3,325 1,032,355 1,035,680

Company

Except for the Company’s available-for-sale
investment which is categorised as available-for-
sale financial assets, all the financial assets of the
Company, including amounts due from subsidiaries
and cash and bank balances are categorised as loans

and receivables.

All the Company’s financial liabilities as at 31
March 2009 and 2008, including other payables are
categorised as financial liabilities as at amortised

cost.

ESANS
BARRSBAAHLEEEREEZ R
HHEREI  IEARAREREE(R
TR B A RIRE AR & RIRITH
)P RAER M BN FIE

ARER—_BENFR-_FE/N\F=A
=t—RzEsRAB(ERELEN
RIE) D BRREHENAHEZERA

==
=]

o
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other
than derivatives, comprise interest-bearing bank
borrowings, finance leases, and cash and bank
balances. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as accounts and bills
receivables and accounts payables, which arise
directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions,
including principally forward currency contracts. The
purpose is to manage its sources of finance and the
currency risk arising from the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below. The Group's
accounting policies in relation to derivatives are set
out in note 3.4 to the financial statements.

45. AR EE B RRBR

AEBzFESRMIEPTETARIN
BRERITAEENR BMEHESUNAS
MRITHEF REEMTAZEREW
RURARERXBERES - AKEHE
ZREMESREE kA E (a0 E KRR
REBUNENER) BERAEEXBE
A o

AEETETITETIARS  TERE
HEKaH EEEEHEHESKRERE
HBAREEEBZINERR

AEESRTAMEE T ZRR ST
KR SMNERRR EERBRERBE
RE - BTSRRI RAZEESEZ
FRMR R - ZFHERR X -
AEEPITET A2 @A BRE NI
HRMEE34 -
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’'s exposure to the risk of changes in
market interest rates relates primarily to the Group's
long term debt obligations with a floating interest

rate.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to
a reasonably possible change in Hong Kong dollar
interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
of the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax (through the
impact on floating rate borrowings) and the Group's

45.

HREEEEEERKE &)

M=ER
AEBAAZNT SN XSS @R TR
ERZN SR B DA B R R G B 2 REME TR A
A -

TRINFEENENEEAEZHME
BB TYRFF AR - ARBERBANE
Rl A(BR)GEBIEEBEZVE)RE
SE LS 2 BURMEDAT -

equity.

Group

PN |

Increase/

Increase/ (decrease) in Increase/
(decrease)  profit/(loss) (decrease)
in basis points before tax in equity
BRBE AR,
B (&5#8) &
#m/ () ®m/(8d)  #Em/Chd)

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT
2009 “EThE
Hong Kong dollar Vo 100 (3,289) (3,289)
Hong Kong dollar B (100) 3,289 3,289
2008 —EENE
Hong Kong dollar ot 100 (4,906) (4,906)
Hong Kong dollar Pl (100) 4,906 4,906
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk
The Group has transactional currency exposures.
Such exposures arise from a substantial portion of
sales or purchases by operating units in RMB.

B R e

KBS -

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity
at the balance sheet date to a reasonably possible
change in the RMB exchange rate, with all other

45. B isREE

TEIIRR
B BT R R K TR0 - AR
RBATEAI( A AR R & EATE

HBEERBEK#E)

AEBAAZIINER HER - ZFRKR
KEABORARBREEEN 2 HE

‘REAARBEXRZAEA

variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before #E)) 2 FRRIEDHT ©

tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary
assets and liabilities).

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) in  (decrease) in

foreign profit/(loss)

currency rate before tax

BRBLADRE],

Ex (&880

#h,/ (D) (H2)

% HK$'000

BT
2009 —BENEF

If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB BB ARBEE 5% (9,525)

If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB it /845 5, A REEFHE 5% 9,525
2008 —BENF

If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB BB AREEE 5% (8,658)

If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB  fis#& 78 & 5 A REF-E 5% 8,658

The Group constantly reviews the economic situation
and its foreign currency risk profile, and considers
implementing appropriate hedging measures in
future as the need arises.

1 40 TONIC INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2009

B ER ST AR B E S E LR
A8 - WRFRT LT B E B EEE
B2 B -



B A R MY RE

31 March 2009
—EFANF=A=+—H

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group's policy
that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms
are subject to credit verification procedures. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and bank balances, derivative
financial instruments, equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss and other receivables, arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is generally no
requirement for collateral.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from accounts and bills
receivables are disclosed in note 22 to the financial
statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds
using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This
tool considers the maturity of both its financial
instruments and financial assets (e.g., accounts
and bills receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of the Group’s available cash and its
available banking facilities.

FERR

AEBERCHEIRAFEZE=0HE
TES - ARBEZBERMBERNUEE
GRETEIZEPHBEXEERSE
TR o IO BUGRIBESRTIARFEE

AEEREMEREE (AT EERE LR
T#F  TEESRIE - BAFEA
B RAIRE R H YRR ) T3 A &
FHROMEAGEERR  HERESE
RzEFTAMREE -

HRAREERRATRAGFEEZE=T
#EITES W REBAERM -

BRAEEASZHERERNZEE
SHNEERRNE - P EEERRYE
RARMITE22HEE o

RBE SRR
AEEFNBERERDESRE TARE
RESRROAR - WTAZESHBT
AR emEE(MREERRNER) K
HER - WRREBNRER

AEENBERERNEBERARSENA
YRR LEABANRITER - K
BoRFEM RN T -
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
The Group consistently maintains a prudent
financing policy and ensures that sufficient cash
and credit lines are maintained to meet the Group’s
liquidity requirements.

As at 31 March 2009, the Company’s financial
liabilities of HK$9,000 (2008: HK$9,000), based
on the contracted undiscounted payments, was
repayable on demand.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial
liabilities as at the balance sheet date, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

45. BIEEMEEEERKE (&)

RBESRR(F)
AEBERFBETBEIBRBR - LERF
HeEBRARS REERENFAEAE
BREBETAE ©

R-ZEZBENE=ZA=1+—H  A2TH
BRI RTINS A EB%9,0007T
ZTET)\F : $B5¥9,0007T) B EKE

REER AKRENCATORTRNE
BEENZIHEBRTIRAT

Group - 2009 rEE-—ZTFNEF
Less than 3 to less than 1t05
On demand 3 months 12 months years Total
TR PR ZEAZEIR
iz =f8A +=f8R ¥k Y
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BT BET T BETR BT
Accounts payables FEFTERSR 59,452 240,389 42,181 - 342,022
Financial liabilities included ~ REFEEREM
in accrued liabilities and ERFEARZ
other payables SREE - 10,418 - - 10,418
Interest-bearing bank and 47 EEH R
other borrowings HitfEE 123,726 27,612 132,695 61,144 345,177
Bank advances on factored  JEUURFTHIE
accounts receivables BRZBTER - 53,394 - - 53,394
183,178 331,813 174,876 61,144 751,011
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B A R MY RE

31 March 2009
—EFANF=A=+—H

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

45. I EREREEERBEK &)

RBE SRR (A)

Group — 2008 KEB - N\F
Less than 3 to less than 1t05
On demand 3 months 12 months years Total
EKb PR ZHEAELIR
¥ =@ A TZ{#A —ERF Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Accounts payables JETERSR 38,067 296,377 173,412 - 507,856
Financial liabilities included ~ HAEzt 8 & R EM
in accrued liabilities and ERZIEARZ
other payables TREE = 6,179 - = 6,179
Interest-bearing bank and T EERK
other borrowings Hitfg & 4299 204,179 94,705 96,686 399,869
Bank advances on factored  JEURFTAE
accounts receivables B2 BITER = 118,451 - = 118,451
Derivative financial fTESRTH
instruments - 3,325 - - 3,325
42,366 628,511 268,117 96,686 1,035,680
Capital management BEAXERE

The primary objective of the Group’s capital
management is to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it, in light of changes
in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. Except for
the compliance of certain bank covenants for
maintaining the Group’s bank facilities, the Group
is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 March 2009 and 2008.

AEEEAEEZTEARR/RELAE

B{ERFFE

REBRBEIREET 28

N URFREBEALER KM xFHE
BREERITREE -

AEBRELCLIREEE

EIRHEEAR

W WHHELRAE - BT HIFIHA
BENGERE  AEETHABRMREIZN
&8 MRRERERANKZEITHR - K
BTERERASBERITERNE TRT
AN - AR EE A E TR SN ED RN
ZERHE  c ARBEZHE - BURZAE
EREBE_ZTNEFR =TT NFE=H
= t+—HIEFEIELS) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS SRR M R

31 March 2009
—FEENF=HA=+—H

45.

46.

47.

48.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by the capital. The Group'’s
policy is to maintain the gearing ratio below 100%.
Net debt includes interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings and bank advances on factored accounts
receivables, less cash and bank balances, and
excludes discontinued operations. Capital includes
total equity. The gearing ratios as at the balance
sheet dates were as follows:

45.

R REEEENRBEKE)

BXREE(A)
AEBEFEREERBLXR(AMERFHER
BER)ERER - ARENERRRERKE
ERBLEMI00%UAT - BIHFREHE
RITEHEER R A5 E U R YR
RERRZBITER - BIRE RRITHE
TN TERERILERERT - EXE
EREGEE NEERANEERMGLX
(N

Group
REE
2009 2008
—EENE —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETIT
Interest-bearing bank and RITFTEER R EMEE
other borrowings 345,177 399,869
Add: Bank advances on factored i EYR SRR
accounts receivables ZIRTTER 53,394 118,451
Less: Cash and bank balances B IBRE RIBITEF (36,758) (31,031)
Net debt BIRFRE 361,813 487,289
Capital BN 386,680 561,750
Gearing ratio BEAELE 93.6% 86.7%
POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 46. FHAKBSEIE
Saved as disclosed elsewhere in the financial GRS SRR EMIB OB EEIN N

statements, no other significant events took place
subsequent to 31 March 2009.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

The comparative income statement has been re-
presented as if the operation discontinued during the
current year had been discontinued at the beginning
of the comparative period (note 13).

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24
July 2009.

47.

48.

EENF A=t HRLEZLHM
EREM -

b
WERZEBEBTFEENRS - BR

NERILEEEBE N LR ME LR
RSB (FTRE13) °

BRI HVHL

MBEBRER_FTENFLA-THEA
BE=aiE - WRRETE -
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AFEMBERBE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted
from the published audited financial statements and

AT RAEEBEREMRFREZEE &
ENBEHE  WEEHIREAE TIRE
BRMBRE  YEEHBEENEFHH

restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out below. g o
RESULTS 4
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1-HILEE
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
ZEEHhE —TTN\F —ZTtF —TEXFE _—ZTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BETT BETT
CONTINUING OPERATIONS  HER& ik
REVENUE WA 2,055,805 2,120,846 2,316,557 2,141,160 2,367,455
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX B AR,
(B18) (152,458) 12,014 25,941 15,869 34,386
Tax HIE (140) (13,515) (6,838) 9 (1,567)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR i/ sk
FROM CONTINUING REZRH
OPERATIONS (E#8) (152,598) (1,501) 19,103 15,959 32,819
DISCONTINUED OPERATION E#& &k
Profit/(loss) for the year BRIEEEER 2
from a discontinued REZHF/
operation (B18) (22,289) 7,186 4,909 2,651 (4,965)
PROFIT/LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ~ AREERH,/
(B18) (174,887) 5,685 24,012 18,610 27,854
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEKRER
At 31 March
R=BR=1+-H
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
ZETHhE —TTN\F —ET+F —TEXF _—TTRF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BT BT BT
TOTAL ASSETS BERE 1,245,569 1,717,475 1,483,583 1,520,653 1,337,608
TOTAL LIABILITIES afsmE (858,889)  (1,155,725) (942,213)  (1,012,587) (840,887)
386,680 561,750 541,370 508,066 496,721
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PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP
AEBIEFRE 2=

31 March 2009
—FEENF=HA=+—H

Particulars of properties held by the Group as at 31 March AEER -_ZEZNFE=FA=+—"BEHEE2Y
2009 are as follows: EFBWOT

PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD BY THE GROUP AEFEHEFBIZAE YRR
IN HONG KONG

Type Lease term

BE R

1. Units D, G and H on 4th Floor, Industrial Medium
Summit Building,
30 Man Yue Street and
21-23 Tai Wan Road, Hung Hom,
Kowloon

AN e R AR
4THY

R#BH305 &

RERE2122358

N1

4#ED « GMHEAL

2.  Unit B on 10th Floor, Industrial Medium
Summit Building,
30 Man Yue Street and
21-23 Tai Wan Road, Hung Hom,
Kowloon

k- e fRHR
FARY)

RWBH305 &

KIRE212235R

N1

101ZBEE iz

1 46 TONIC INDUSTRIES HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2009



PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP
AEEFHZYF

31 March 2009
—EFENF=A=+—8H

PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD BY THE GROUP ZXREBELEEEBEE ZYIXRELS(E)
IN HONG KONG (continued)

Type Lease term

BE iy

3. Units A, B, L and O on 11th Floor, Industrial Medium
Summit Building,
30 Man Yue Street and
21-23 Tai Wan Road, Hung Hom,
Kowloon

JUEE T A HEA
AR

RMHE305% &

ARIRE21E235%

ey N1

1142A - B~ LR OENL

4. Lorry Car Parking Car park Medium
Spaces Nos. 7, 8, 9 and 10 on 1st Floor
Summit Building,
30 Man Yue Street and
21-23 Tai Wan Road, Hung Hom,
Kowloon

A By o £
FARE )
RHRE305% &
RIRE21E235%
WERNE
118557 - 8 - 9% 105
EEIREAL

5. Private Car Parking Car park Medium
Spaces Nos. 10, 14, 21 and 22 on Basement
Summit Building,
30 Man Yue Street and
21-23 Tai Wan Road, Hung Hom,
Kowloon

A By Gk
FAR )
RHRE305% &
ARIRE21E235%
WERNE
HESE10 ~ 14 ~ 2152257
FLREREAL
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PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP
AEBIEFRE 2=

31 March 2009
—FEENF=HA=+—H

PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD BY THE GROUP  A&E@EEhEFE 2 %%
IN THE PRC

Type Lease term

B HH

6. Anindustrial complex in Industrial Medium
Shitanpu Administrative Zone
Tangxia Town,
Dongguan,
Guangdong Province

ERE T% aapet
Rz

TR

AEHERRZ

EATX%RE

7. Anindustrial complex in Industrial Medium
Zhenhua Industrial District
Qishi Town,
Dongguan,
Guangdong Province

BERAE T ]
Rz

hREA

RETXREZ

RAaLlXxE

8. Unit A8B05 Industrial Medium
Tiananchuangxin Technology Square
Shenzhen City
Guangdong Province

A B T HRHA
wIIT

K2 B

BIFT R ES

APESO5ZE

9. An industrial complex in Industrial Medium
Huangjiabo Village
ShiPai Town, Shi Pai
Dongguan,
Guangdong Province

ERA T% FRHp
Rz

AR A

BHREN

IR
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